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United Mining and Сhеп,iеаІ Сопірапу, ЈЅC
Financial ѕtaten:enBѕfor the year ended 3’ December 2020

MANAGEMENT’s STATEMENT OF REsPONsIBILITY
FOR РRЕРАRАТЮN AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Management of United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC (hereinafter referred to as the Company) is responsible for
preparation of the financial statements that present fairly, in all material respects, the fmancial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2020, as well as its operating performance, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended 31 December
2020, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter referred to as ЈFRЅ).

In preparing the IFRЅ financial statements, the Company’s management is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether IFRЅ have been followed, subject to any material departures from IFRЅ disclosed and explained in the
notes to the financial statements;

. prepare the IFRЅ financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business for the foreseeable future;

‘identify account for and disclose related party relationships and transactions;

. identify, account for, and disclose all events after the balance sheet date that require adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements;

. disclose all claims in connection with lawsuits that were, or may be in the near future;

. disclose fairly in the financial statements information on all loans granted or guarantees on behalf of the Company’s
management.

The Company’s management is also responsible for:

. development, implementation and operation of an effective and reliable internal control system in the Company;

accounting in accordance with the legislation and accounting standards;

. taking measures within its competence to protect the Company’s assets;

detection and prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

These IFRЅ financial statements as at 31 December 2020 have been approved by the Company’s management on 23 April
2020.

On behalf of the Co p. ѕ management:

‘ј
Acting Chairman 0 Chief Account..
Artur Ѕomov Ѕvitlana P01 .



United Mining and Chemical Сотрaпу, ЈЅC
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KREЅTON
TGCG

INDEPENDENT AUDITORs REPORT

To the shareholders and the Management Board

United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Mining and Chemical Company, JЅC (hereinafter as the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet (statement of financial position) as at 31 December 2020, the
statement of financial performance (statement of comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows (direct method) for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the impact of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements present fairIy, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and Its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRЅ) the requirements for the preparation of
financial statements set out in the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine dated 16
July 1999 Мo.996-ХIV.

Basis for qualified opinion

1. In performing transition of the financial statements to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRЅ)
starting from 1 January 2016, the Company used the fair value of property, plant and equipment, including
work in progress and intangibIe assets as their ‘deemed cost’, in accordance with IFRЅ I First-time
Adoption of IFRЅ. Certain assumptions and methodologies used in determining such fair value by an
independent appraiser as at 31 July 2016, were not acceptable, so the measured value of property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets could not be used by the Company for the purposes of IFRЅ 1. In
addition, the use of fair value for intangible assets is permitted only for those assets that meet the criteria
for lAS 38 intangible Assets for revaluation (including the existence of an active market). Due to inherent
audit limitations, we have not been able to determine the impact of this departure from IFRЅ on the current
financial statements.

2. As at 31 December 2018, the Company recognized an impairment losses for property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets in the amount of UAH 346,426 thousand. The results of such impairment
have been recognized by reducing the value of an individual asset within a singIe cash-generating unit,
contrary to the requirements of lAS 36 impairment of Assets. Due to inherent audit limitations, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence of the impact of this departure from IFRЅ on
the current financial statements.

3. As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not recognize additional provisions for the payment of
dividends for 2018, in accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 1015
dated 4 December 2019. Thus, the current provisions in the Company’s financial statements as at 31
December 2019 was understated by UAH 68,932 thousand, and the retained earnings were overstated
by the above amount.

4



United Mining and Сћепііса’ Company, .ЈЅC
Financial ѕlatenne,ztѕfor the year ended 31 Пееетbег 2020.

4. In the financial statements as at and for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December2019, the
Company recognized the cost of financial incentives to employees through the use of additional capital
(Incentive fund) in the statement of changes in equity in the amount of UAH 8,707 thousand and UAH
32,423 thousand, respectively, which does not meet the requirements of lAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. Ihus, the net profit for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, was
overstated by UAH 8,707 thousand and UAH 32,423 thousand, respectively, and the retained earnings
as at 31 December 2020 were overstated by UAH 41,130 thousand.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants matterd by the International Ethics standards Board for Accountants (IEЅBA Code) and ethical
requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of the financial statements, and perform other duties of ethics in
accordance with those requirements and the IEЅBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Explanatory paragraph — the impact of the economic and epidemiological crisis, and political instability

We draw attention to Note ito the financial statements which states that the impact of the economic crisis, political
instability and epidemiological condition associated with the spread of coronavirus СОVID-І9, which continue in
Ukraine and around the world, as well as their final settlement cannot be predicted with sufficient probability, and
they may adversely affect the economy of Ukraine and the Company’s operating activities.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are the matters which, according to our professional judgment, were the most significant during
our audit of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to communicate in our report.

An estimate of expected credit losses on trade receivables (line code 1125), UAH 555,263 thousand

Refer to Note 9

We focused on this area as a key audit matter
due to the fact that at the time of analyzing the
data used by the Company to determine the
allowance for expected credit losses: on trade
receivables, and the fact that IFRЅ 9 Financial
Instruments is a complex financial reporting
standard that required the management to
make significant judgments to determine the
allowance for expected credit losses.
The key areas of judgment include
management’s interpretation of the
requirements for impairment measurement in
applying IFRЅ 9, which are reflected in the
Company’s expected credit loss model, and the
assumptions used in the expected credit loss
model, such as the buyer’s financial condition,
expected future cash flows.

Our procedures included, but not limited to:

- an analysis of the accounting policies for
expected credit losses on trade
receivables;

- an evaluation of the methods and
methodology for modeling expected credit
losses in accordance with the
requirements of IFRЅ 9;

- an evaluation of the data used by the
Company in the expected credit losses
model to determine provision for
impairment:

- an analysis of the data on the maturity of
trade receivables before and after the
reporting date;

- testing the calculation of expected credit
losses recognized on an individual basis;

- an evaluation of the sufficiency of the
created provision and the sufficiency and
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accuracy of the disclosure in the financial
statements.

Other matters

The audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been performed by
another auditor who, on 9 July 2020, expressed a qualified opinion to these financial statements regarding a
misstatement of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets when performing
transition to IFRЅ, misstatement in the accounting of the results of property, plant and equipment impairment,
incorrect application of the IFRЅ requirements when recognizing the provisions for reclamation, non-recognition
of the additional provisions for dividends, and presentation of the cost of financial incentives to employees through
the use of additional capital.

Other information

The Company’s management is responsible for the other information prepared as at and for the year ended 31
December 2020. The other information comprises the information included the following reports:

1. Managomont Report for the yoar 2020, prepared in accordanco with Articlo 6 and Article 11 of the [3w of
Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine No. 996-ХIV dated 16 July 1999;

2. Annual information of the issuer of securities for the year 2020, prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Regulation on Disclosure of Information by Issuers of securities, approved by the Decision of the
National Commission on securities and stock Market, No. 2826 dated 3 December2013.

The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the fјnancial statements, it is our responsibility to review the other information
mentioned above and to consider whether there is significant inconsistency between the other information and
the financial statements or our knowledge gained during the audit, or whether this information is containing a
substantial misstatement. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Management Report for 2020

The Company has prepared the Management Report for 2020. In the Management Report, we found no material
inconsistency between the other information and the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
except for incomplete description of the internal control and risk management system, and the information referred
to in paragraphs 1-4 of the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report Accordingly, we cannot conclude
whether the other information contains a material misstatement in relation to these matters.

Annual Information on the Issuer of securities for 2020

The Company plans to prepare and matter the 2020 Annual Information on the Issuer of securities after the date
of issuance of this Independent Аuditoґs Report. When we read the 2020 Annual Information on the Issuer of
Securities, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

ResponsibilIties of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company’s management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRЅ and the requirements of the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in
Ukraine No. 996-ХіV dated 16 July 1999, regarding preparation of financial statements, and for such internal
control system as the management determines necessary to ensure preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to matter an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with IЅAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with IsA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit engagement. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the internal control;

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies applied and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

- conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless a law or regulation precludes public disclosure
of such matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that such matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on the requirements of other laws and reguIations

Other matters

— expressing an opinion on the information specified in paragraphs 5-9 of Part 3 of Article 40-1, and verification of the
information specitied in paragraphs 1-4 of Pad 3 of Article 40-1 of the Law of Ukraine On securities and Stock Market No.
3480-ІV dated 24 September 2020 (hereinafter as the Law 3480-ІV) regarding the Company’s Management Report to be
included in the 2020 Annual Information on the Issuer of Securities

Based on the work performed during the audit, we came to the conclusion that the information, namely: a
description of the main characteristics of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems; a list of
persons who directly or indirectly own a significant stake in the Company; information on any restriction of the
rights of participation and voting of shareholders (participants) at the general meeting of the issuer; the procedure
for appointment and dismissal of the Company’s officials; the powers of the Company’s officials, is disclosed in
the Management Report as at 31 December 2020 as required by paragraphs 5-9 of Part 3 of Article 40-1 of the
Law 3480-IV

In addition, we have checked the information included in the Corporate Governance Report, the disclosure of
which is required by paragraphs 1-4 of Part 3 of Article 40-1 of the Law 3480-ІV, namely:

- reference to its own corporate governance code by which the Company is guided, that the Company voluntarily
decided to apply with disclosure of relevant information on corporate governance practices applied in excess
of requirements specified by the legislation;

- information on the general meeting of shareholders (participants) and general description of the decisions
taken at the meeting;

- information on the personal composition of the supervisory Board and collegial executive body of the Company
and committees (if any), information about the meetings and general description of the decisions taken,

The information contained in the 2020 Corporate Governance Report is disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of paragraphs 1-4 of Part 3 of Article 40.1 of the Law 3480-lV (except for the existence of its own
corporate governance code, which the Company did not accept for use and creation of the Supervisory Board)
and is consistent with the financial statements.

Information disclosed in our Independent Auditor’s Report in compliance with the requirements of Part 4
of Article 14 of the Law of Ukraine On Audit of Financial Reporting and AuditActivity No. 2258-VIlІ dated
21 December 2017 (hereinafter as the Law):

The purpose of our audit is to increase the confidence of identified users in the financial statements of the
Company.

We have determined the scope of the audit in such a way as to allow us to obtain sufficient audit evidence to
express our opinion on whether the Company’s financial statements have been prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the applicable conceptual framework for financial reporting, taking into account the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, controls as well the specifics of the industry in which the Company
operates.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with ISA and relevant ethical requirements and provides us with an
opportunity to formulate such an opinion. Due to the inherent Imitations of an audit, most of the audit evidence
on which our conclusions and our opinion are based, is more convincing than conclusive, and therefore the audit
does not provide an absolute guarantee that the financial statements are free of misstatement and our audit does
not guarantee the future viability of the Company, efficiency or effectiveness of the Company’s business
management.

Appointment and duration of the audit engagement

We were appointed auditors on 27 November 2020 by the decision of the Company’s Board of Directors to perform
a statutory audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. The total duration
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of the engagement of Kreston COG Audit LW for statutory audit of the financial statements the Company is 850
hours.

Identifying and measuring risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error at the level of financial
statements and assertions due to the understanding of the Client and his environment, including internal
control

General procedures for identifying and measuring risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error
that were used during our audit:
- directing the work of the audit team in important areas of the audit;
- analysis of the information and measurements obtained in previous periods;
- review of disclosures to financial statements and testing of supporting documentation to assess compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations addressed in this section;
- analysis of the Company’s internal control environment, the process of identifying business risks relevant
to the Сompanу1s financial reporting purposes, assessing the significance of risks, the probability of their
occurrence, as well as the Company’s decisions on the mechanism for examining these risks;
- external confirmation procedures, including the balances of receivables and their terms, as well as
inspection of the documents after the end of the period and the internal control system of the Company related
to the payment of receivables and other financial assets;
— roquesls Lu the ціьіё~gеіґіеіі1, LlIuse сlі~гуеd with govenLdIIce, dud iіі[егі’ыl lё~wуегs геуёігсhiпg existing ~піd
potential lawsuits and claims;
- testing of Journal entries;
- understanding the IT control measures, including related business processes pertinent to financial
reporting, the main measures that the Company uses to monitor internal control over financial reporting;
- analysis of regulatory risks (regulatory environment, including the applied conceptual framework for
financial reporting, legal and political environment); At the same time, we paid special attention to those laws
and regulations that directly affected the financial statements or that had a fundamental impact on the
Company’s activities. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context, included the Law of Ukraine
On Electricity, the Law of Ukraine On the Electricity Market, and the regulations of the National Energy and
Utilities Regulatory Commission, and relevant tax legislation.
- an assessment of whether judgments and decisions made by management in determining accounting
estimates, indicate bias;
- performing analytical procedures together with detailed tests in accordance with the requirements of
professional standards related to reflected amounts and/or ratios, taking into account the source,
comparability, nature, and relevance of available information, and measures of internal control over financial
reporting;
- an analysis of the circumstances affecting the coefficients used to assess the Company’s financial position,
performance, or cash flows that were expected to lead to misstatements, including changes in trends or
significant coefficients of the financial statements or their ratios.
- we also reported relevant identified laws and regulations, the potential risks of fraud to all members of the
audit engagement team, including internal experts, and remained vigilant throughout the audit for any signs of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Among the risks we identified that were significant during the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the
current period, which according to our professional judgment should have been addressed and which led to the
modification of our opinion, described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report.

Our actions in response to the assessed risks included: assessment of the Company’s accounting policy, analysis
of revaluation, impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, making provisions, analysis of
cost classification and inclusion of relevant data in the accounting. Requests for supporting records and discussion
with management. We have also checked the relevant disclosures in the financial statements.

We included the description of the matters that are disclosed in the Company’s financial statements and are, in
our professional judgment, also worth attention in the Explanatory Paragraph section of our report. Without
qualifying our opinion, these matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and are fundamental to understanding financial statements by users.

Those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Company’s current period financial statements
and that, in our professional Judgment, requiring to be drawn to the attention are listed in the Key Audit Matters
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section of our report. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In performing this statutory audit engagement, we analyzed the areas in which there were risks of bias and
formation of subjective judgments by management, for example, on significant accounting estimates, which
included the application of assumptions and consideration of future events that are uncertain due to their nature.
All significant risks identified by us, which we consider appropriate to disclose in accordance with Part 3 of Article
14 of Law No. 2258 VIII, are listed in the Key Audit Matters section of this report and have been discussed with
the Company’s top management.

According to the results of our audit, all identified breaches being significant risks were discussed with the
Company’s top management, those that required corrections in the financial statements were corrected (described
in the additional report for the audit committee), except for those that remained in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report.

The breaches we found are not associated wIth a risk of fraud.

Consistency with the supplementary Report for the Audit Committee

Although there is a regulatory requirement for the Company to establish an audit committee or to assign
appropriate functions to a revision group or supervisory board, as at the date of our report, neither audit committee
nor supervisory board was formed. Based on the above, our supplementary Report for the audit committee was
submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors. We confirm that our audit opinion on the financial statements set
out in this Independent Auditor’s Report is consistent with the supplementary Report addressed to the
supervisory Board on 9 April 2021.

The information contained in the Independent Auditors Report which is presented on 23 April 2021 upon the
results of the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, is consistent with the
information in the supplementary Report for the Supervisory Board of Directors dated 9 April 2021. We did not
find any inconsistencies between the supplementary Report for the Audit Committee and the information provided
in the Independent Аuditoґs Report.

Providing non-audit services and independence

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not provided the Company or its controlled
entities with the non-audit services specified by law in Part 4 of Article 6 of Law No. 2258 VIII. In addition, we did
not provide the Company or its controlled entities with services other than statutory audit services that were not
disclosed in the financial statements or in the Management Report.

Kreston GCG Audit LLC and the key audit partner are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics standards Board of Directors for
Accountants (“IEЅBA Code”) and ethical requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of the financial
statements, and performed other duties of ethics in accordance with those requirements and the IEЅBA Code.
During the audit, we did not identify any additional facts or matters that could affect our independence, and which
we would like to draw attention to.

1 Name of the audit firm KREЅTON GCG AUDIT, LLC
2 Legal entity identification code 31586485

~ Registration number of audit firm in the Register of 2846auditors and audit entities

10



United Mining and Сі:ејііісаі Company, ЈЅC
Тйіапеіаі ѕtatementѕfor the year ended 31 ПесепїЬег 2020.

The engagement partner

responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is: ЅerhU Holub

Registration number in the Register of auditors and audit entities: 101821

For and on behalf of KREЅTON COG AUDIT, LLC

Director AndrU Domrachov

Registration number in the Register of auditors and audit entities: 101004

Palladium City BC

172 Horkoho (Antonovycha) street

Kyiv, 03150, Ukraine

23 April 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’s REPORT

To the shareholders and the Management Board

United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Mining and Chemical Company, JЅC (hereinafter as the
Company), which comprise the baLance sheet (statement of financial position) as at 31 December 2020, the
statement of financial performance (statement of comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows (direct method) for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the impact of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting standards (IFRЅ) the requirements for the preparation of
financial statements set out in the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine dated 16
July 1999 No.996-ХIV.

Basis for qualified opinion

1. In performing transition of the financial statements to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRЅ)
starting from 1 January 2016, the Company used the fair value of property, pIant and equipment, including
work in progress and intangible assets as their ‘deemed cost’, in accordance with IFRЅ 1 First-time
Adoption of IFRЅ. Certain assumptions and methodologies used in determining such fair value by an
independent appraiser as at 31 July 2016, were not acceptable, so the measured value of property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets could not be used by the Company for the purposes of IFRЅ 1. In
addition, the use of fair value for intangible assets is permitted only for those assets that meet the criteria
for lAS 38 intangible Assets for revaluation (including the existence of an active market). Due to inherent
audit limitations, we have not been able to determine the impact of this departure from IFRЅ on the current
financial statements.

2. As at 31 December 2018, the Company recognized an impairment Iosses for property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets in the amount of UAH 346,426 thousand. The results of such impairment
have been recognized by reducing the value of an individual asset within a single cash-generating unit,
contrary to the requirements of lAS 36 impairment of Assets. Due to inherent audit limitations, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence of the impact of this departure from IFRЅ on
the current financial statements.

3. As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not recognize additional provisions for the payment of
dividends for 2018, in accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 1015
dated 4 December 2019. Thus, the current provisions in the Company’s financial statements as at 31
December 2019 was understated by UAH 68,932 thousand, and the retained earnings were overstated
by the above amount.

4



United Mining and Ci: en: lea! Соіпрану, ЈЅC
Financial staten: en/s for the year ended 31 Decenzber 2020.

4. In the financial statements as at and for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019’ the
Company recognized the cost of financial incentives to employees through the use of additional capital
(incentive fund) in the statement of changes in equity in the amount of UAH 8,707 thousand and UAH
32,423 thousand, respectively, which does not meet the requirements of lAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. Thus, the net profit for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, was
overstated by UAH 8,707 thousand and UAH 32,423 thousand, respectively, and the retained earnings
as at 31 December 2020 were overstated by UAH 41,130 thousand.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants matterd by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IEЅBA Code) and ethical
requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of the financial statements, and perform other duties of ethics in
accordance with those requirements and the IEЅBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Explanatory paragraph — the impact of the economic and epidemiological crisis, and political instability

We draw attention to Note ito the financial statements which states that the impact of the economic crisis, political
instability and epidemiological condition associated with the spread of coronavirus СОVID-19, which continue in
Ukraine and around the world, as well as their final settlement cannot be predicted with sufficient probability, and
they may adversely affect the economy of Ukraine and the Company’s operating activities.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are the matters which, according to our professional judgment, were the most significant during
our audit of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to communicate in our report.

An estimate of expected credit losses on trade receivabies (line code 1125), UAH 555,263 thousand

Refer to Note 9

We focused on this area as a key audit matter
due to the fact that at the time of analyzing the
data used by the Company to determine the
allowance for expected credit losses: on trade
receivables, and the fact that IFRЅ 9 Financial
instruments is a complex financial reporting
standard that required the management to
make significant judgments to determine the
allowance for expected credit losses.
The key areas of judgment include
management’s interpretation of the
requirements for impairment measurement in
applying IFRЅ 9, which are reflected in the
Company’s expected credit loss model, and the
assumptions used in the expected credit loss
model, such as the buyer’s financial condition,
expected future cash flows.

Our procedures included, but not limited to:

- an analysis of the accounting policies for
expected credit losses on trade
receivables;

- an evaluation of the methods and
methodology for modeling expected credit
losses in accordance with the
requirements of IFRЅ 9;

- an evaluation of the data used by the
Company in the expected credit losses
model to determine provision for
impairment:

- an analysis of the data on the maturity of
trade receivables before and after the
reporting date;

- testing the calculation of expected credit
losses recognized on an individual basis;

- an evaluation of the sufficiency of the
created provision and the sufficiency and
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accuracy of the disclosure in the financial
statements.

Other matters

The audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been performed by
another auditor who, on 9 July 2020, expressed a qualified opinion to these financial statements regarding a
misstatement of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets when performing
transition to IFRЅ, misstatement in the accounting of the results of property, plant and equipment impairment,
incorrect application of the IFRЅ requirements when recognizing the provisions for reclamation, non-recognition
of the additional provisions for dividends, and presentation of the cost of financial incentives to employees through
the use of additional capital.

Other information

The Company’s management is responsible for the other information prepared as at and for the year ended 31
December 2020. The other information comprises the information included the following reports:

1 Management Report for the year 2020’ prepared in accordance with Article 6 and Article 11 of the Law of
Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine No. 996-ХіV dated 16 July 1999;

2. Annual information of the issuer of securities for the year 2020, prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Regulation on Disclosure of Information by Issuers of securities, approved by the Decision of the
National Commission on securities and stock Market, Nc. 2826 dated 3 December2013.

The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, it is our responsibility to review the other information
mentioned above and to consider whether there is significant inconsistency between the other information and
the financial statements or our knowledge gained during the audit, or whether this information is containing a
substantial misstatement. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Management Report for 2020

The Company has prepared the Management Report for 2020. In the Management Report, we found no material
inconsistency between the other information and the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
exceptfor incomplete description of the internal control and risk management system, and the information referred
to in paragraphs 1-4 of the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report Accordingly, we cannot conclude
whether the other information contains a material misstatement in relation to these matters.

Annual In formation on the Issuer of securities for 2020

The Company plans to prepare and matter the 2020 Annual Information on the Issuer of Securities after the date
of issuance of this Independent Аuditoґs Report. When we read the 2020 Annual Information on the Issuer of
Securities, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company’s management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRЅ and the requirements of the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in
Ukraine No. 996-ХIV dated 16 July 1999, regarding preparation of financial statements, and for such internal
control system as the management determines necessary to ensure preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to matter an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with IЅAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with IsA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit engagement. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the internal control;

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies applied and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

- conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unless a law or regulation precludes public disclosure
of such matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that such matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on the requirements of other laws and regulations

Other matters

— expressing an opinion on the information specified in paragraphs 5-9 of Part 3 of Article 40-І, and verification of the
information specified in paragraphs 1-4 of Part 3 of Article 40-І of the Law of Ukraine On Securities and Stock Market No.
3480-IV dated 24 september 2020 (hereinafter as the Law 3480-1V) regarding the Company’s Management Report to be
included in the 2020 AnnuaL Information on the Issuer of Securities

Based on the work performed during the audit, we came to the conclusion that the information, namely: a
description of the main characteristics of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems; a list of
persons who directly or indirectly own a significant stake in the Company; information on any restriction of the
rights of participation and voting of shareholders (participants) at the general meeting of the issuer; the procedure
for appointment and dismissal of the Company’s officials; the powers of the Company’s officials, is disclosed in
the Management Report as at 31 December 2020 as required by paragraphs 5-9 of Part 3 of Article 40-1 of the
Law 3480-lV

In addition, we have checked the information included in the Corporate Governance Report, the disclosure of
which is required by paragraphs 1-4 of Part 3 of Article 40-1 of the Law 3480-lV, namely:

- reference to its own corporate governance code by which the Company is guided, that the Company voluntarily
decided to apply with disclosure of relevant information on corporate governance practices applied in excess
of requirements specified by the legislation;

- information on the general meeting of shareholders (participants) and general description of the decisions
taken at the meeting;

- information on the personal composition of the supervisory Board and collegial executive body of the Company
and committees (if any), information about the meetings and general description of the decisions taken.

The information contained in the 2020 Corporate Governance Report is disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of paragraphs 1-4 of Part 3 of Article 40.1 of the Law 3480-lV (except for the existence of its own
corporate governance code, which the Company did not accept for use and creation of the supervisory Board)
and is consistent with the financial statements.

Information disclosed in our Independent Auditor’s Report in compliance with the requirements of Part 4
of Article 14 of the Law of Ukraine On Audit of Financial Reporting and Audit Activity No. 2258-VIlІ dated
21 December2017 (hereinafter as the Law):

The purpose of our audit is to increase the confidence of identified users in the financial statements of the
Company.

We have determined the scope of the audit in such a way as to allow us to obtain sufficient audit evidence to
express our opinion on whether the Company’s financial statements have been prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the applicable conceptual framework for financial reporting, taking into account the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, controls as well the specifics of the industry in which the Company
operates.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with ISA and relevant ethical requirements and provides us with an
opportunity to formulate such an opinion. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, most of the audit evidence
on which our conclusions and our opinion are based, is more convincing than conclusive, and therefore the audit
does not provide an absolute guarantee that the financial statements are free of misstatement and our audit does
not guarantee the future viability of the Company, efficiency or effectiveness of the Company’s business
management. .

Appointment and duration of the audit engagement

We were appointed auditors on 27 November 2020 by the decision of the Company’s Board of Directors to perform
a statutory audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. The total duration
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of the engagement of Kreston GCG Audit LLC for statutory audit of the financial statements the Company is 850
hours.

Identifying and measuring risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error at the level of financial
statements and assertions due to the understanding of the Client and his environment, including internal
control

General procedures for identifying and measuring risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error
that were used during our audit:
- directing the work of the audit team in important areas of the audit;
- analysis of the information and measurements obtained in previous periods;
- review of disclosures to financial statements and testing of supporting documentation to assess compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations addressed in this section;
- analysis of the Company’s internal control environment, the process of identifying business risks relevant
to the Company’s financial reporting purposes, assessing the significance of risks, the probability of their
occurrence, as well as the Company’s decisions on the mechanism for examining these risks;
- external confirmation procedures, including the balances of receivables and their terms, as well as
inspection of the documents after the end of the period and the internal control system of the Company related
to the payment of receivables and other financial assets;
- requests (a (he rrialјagenјeLi(, these charged with goverIiarice, aiid irј(erјјal lawyers геgыdiгіg exisUrig and
potential lawsuits and claims;
- testing of journal entries;
- understanding the IT control measures, including related business processes pertinent to financial
reporting, the main measures that the Company uses to monitor internal control over financial reporting;
- analysis of regulatory risks (regulatory environment, including the applied conceptual framework for
financial reporting, legal and political environment); At the same time, we paid special attention to those laws
and regulations that directly affected the financial statements or that had a fundamental impact on the
Company’s activities. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context, included the Law of Ukraine
On Electricity, the Law of Ukraine On the Electricity Market, and the regulations of the National Energy and
Utilities Regulatory Commission, and relevant tax legislation.
- an assessment of whether Judgments and decisions made by management in determining accounting
estimates, indicate bias;
- performing analytical procedures together with detailed tests in accordance with the requirements of
professional standards related to reflected amounts and/or ratios, taking into account the source,
comparability, nature, and relevance of available information, and measures of internal control over financial
reporting;
- an analysis of the circumstances affecting the coefficients used to assess the Company’s financial position,
performance, or cash flows that were expected to lead to misstatements, including changes in trends or
significant coefficients of the financial statements or their ratios.
- we also reported relevant identified laws and regulations, the potential risks of fraud to all members of the
audit engagement team, including internal experts, and remained vigilant throughout the audit for any signs of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Among the risks we identified that were significant during the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the
current period, which according to our professional judgment should have been addressed and which led to the
modification of our opinion, described in the Basis for Qua/if/ed Opinion section of our report.

Our actions in response to the assessed risks included: assessment of the Company’s accounting policy, analysis
of revaluation, impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, making provisions, analysis of
cost classification and inclusion of relevant data in the accounting. Requests for supporting records and discussion
with management. We have also checked the relevant disclosures in the financial statements.

We included the description of the matters that are disclosed in the Company’s financial statements and are, in
our professional Judgment, also worth attention in the Explanatory Paragraph section of our report. Without
qualifying our opinion, these matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and are fundamental to understanding financial statements by users.

Those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Company’s current period financial statements
and that, in our professional judgment, requiring to be drawn to the attention are listed in the Key Audit Matters
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section of our report. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In performing this statutory audit engagement, we analyzed the areas in which there were risks of bias and
formation of subjective judgments by management, for example, on significant accounting estimates, which
included the application of assumptions and consideration of future events that are uncertain due to their nature.
All significant risks identified by us, which we consider appropriate to disclose in accordance with Part 3 of Article
14 of Law No. 2258 VIII, are listed in the Key Audit Matters section of this report and have been discussed with
the Company’s top management.

According to the results of our audit, all identified breaches being significant risks were discussed with the
Company’s top management, those that required corrections in the financial statements were corrected (described
in the additional report for the audit committee), except for those that remained in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report.

The breaches we found are not associated with a risk of fraud.

Consistency with the supplementary Report for the Audit CommIttee

Although there is a regulatory requirement for the Company to establish an audit committee or to assign
appropriate functions to a revision group or supervisory board, as at the date of our report, neither audit committee
nor supervisory board was formed. Based on the above, our supplementary Report for the audit committee was
submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors. We confirm that our audit opinion on the financial statements set
out in this Independent Auditor’s Report is consistent with the supplementary Report addressed to the
Supervisory Board on 9 April 2021.

The information contained in the Independent Аuditoґs Report which is presented on 23 April 2021 upon the
results of the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, is consistent with the
information in the supplementary Report for the Supervisory Board of Directors dated 9 April 2021. We did not
find any inconsistencies between the Supplementary Report for the Audit Committee and the information provided
in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Providing non-audit services and independence

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not provided the Company or its controlled
entities with the non-audit services specified by law in Part 4 of Article 6 of Law No. 2258 VIII. In addition, we did
not provide the Company or its controlled entities with services other than statutory audit services that were not
disclosed in the financial statements or in the Management Report.

Kreston GCG Audit LLC and the key audit partner are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics standards Board of Directors for
Accountants (“IEЅBA Code”) and ethical requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of the financial
statements, and performed other duties of ethics in accordance with those requirements and the IEЅBA Code.
During the audit, we did not identify any additional facts or matters that could affect our independence, and which
we would like to draw attention to.

1 Name of the audit firm KREЅTON GCG AUDIT, LLC
2 Legal entity identification code 31586485

~ Registration number of audit firm in the Register of 2846auditors and audit entities
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The engagement partner

responsible for the audit resuIting in this independent auditor’s report is:

Registration number in the Register of auditors and audit entities: 101821

For and on behalf of KREЅTON GCG AUDIT, LLC

Director

Registration number in the Register of auditors and audit entities: lOll! -

Pailadium City BC

1 72 Horkoho (Antonovycha) street

Kyiv, 03150, Ukraine

23 April 2021

Ѕerhh Holub

1 Domrachov
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At the beginning of
. . AttheendoftheAssets Line code the reporting . . Notes

. reporting period
period

1 2 3 4
I. Non-current assets

Intangible assets 1000 65,387 61,571 6
Iiistoricai cost 1001 83,443 84,065
accunndated amortization 1002 (18)056) (22,494)

Construction in progress 1005 I 18,405 90,604 6
Property, plant and equipment 1010 1,1 ј 2,852 1,179,364 6

historical cost /011 2,123,149 2,389,220
depreciation 1012 (1,010,297) (1,209,856)

Non-current financial investments:
accounted for using the equity method 1030 - -

other financial investments 1035 - -

Non-currentreceivables 1040 -

Deferred tax assets 1045 21,722 11 1,720 24
Other non-current assets 1090 4,023 12,492 7
Total Section 1 1095 1,322,388 1,455,751

11. Current assets
Inventories 1100 843,804 1,094,131 8

Production stock 1101 251,396 252,500
Work in progress 1102 53,209 59,378
Rnished goods /103 539,177 782,248
Merchandise 1104 22 5

Current biological assets 1110 - -

Trade receivables 1125 608,598 555,263 9
Receivables related to:

advances paid 1130 117,828 64,258
budget settlements 1135 98,709 23,721

including income tax 1136 - -

Accrued receivables I 140 203 161
Other current receivables I 155 2,203 821,879 10
Current financial investments 1160 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 1165 405,292 34,928 II
Cash in hand Ј166 s 3
Cash at bank 1167 22,240 34,925

Prepaid expenses 1170 - -

Other current assets 1190 24,557 27,334
Total Section 11 1195 2,101,194 2,621,675
UI. Non-current assets held for sale 1200 - -

Balance 1300 3,423,582 4,077,426

CODES

2021 01 ?
36716128

8038900000
Entity: United Mining and Chemical Company, JЅC UЅREOU Codc
Territory: City of Kyiv KOATUU code
Organizational and legal form of business: Joint stock Company KOPFO code:
Type of economic activity: Mining of ores of other non-ferrous metals KVED code
The average number of employees: 5,238
Address, telephone: 3 Surikova Ѕtr., City of Kyiv, Tel. 04422 90 247
Unit of measurement: thousands of hiyvnias without decimal
place
Prepared (mark V in the appropriate cell):
as per National Regulations (standards) of Accounting
as per Intemational Financial Reporting Standards

BALANCE (STATEMENT OF FBWANCL4L POSITION)
As at 31 December 2020

240
7.29

V

Form No.1 DKUD code: 1801001
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United Miii lug an henuca ompany, ЈЅC
Financial seaeenientѕ for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the beginning of ј At the end of the
Line code ј the reporting reporting perliul

period _______________________

651,338

I. Equity
Registered (share) capital 1400 1,944,000 1,944,000
Revaluation surplus 1405
Additional paid-in capital 1410 503,146 524,488
CumuIative exchange differences 1412 ____________________

Reserve capital 1415 60,102 63,853
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 1420 (115,038) 23,340
Unpaid capital 1425
Withdrawn capital 1430
TotnI Section I 1495 2,392,210 ј 2,555,681
II. Non-current liabilities and provisions
Deferred tax liabilities 1500
Non-current bank loans 1510 __________________

Other non-current lјnhilities 1515 8.705
Non-current provisions 1520 766,861

Long-’erni pro visions for labor costs ‘521 160,413 207,285
RесІата’іои reserve Ј522 490,925 559,576

Special-purpose financing 1525
Total Section II 1595 654,007 ј 775,566

ІІІ. Сuггепt liabilities and provisions
Short-term bank loans 1600
Current_payables_relating_to: ___________________________________________

non-current liabilities 1610 1,793 4,745
trade payables 1615 96,778 223,035
budget settlements 1620 32,159 111,696

including income tax 1621 3,489 40,346
insurance 1625 7,302 9,314
payroll 1630 27,249 34,724

Current payables on advances received 1635 6,909 10,434
Due to shareholders 1640
Current ~aуaЬlеs on internal payments 1645 __________________

Current provisions 1660 ј 184,085 ј 335.443
Deferred income 1665
Othercurrent liabinties 1690 21,090 ј 16,788
TotaI Section III . 1695 377,365 ј 746,179
IV. Liabilities related to non-current assets held for 1700
sale and disposal aroups
Balance 1900 ј 3,423,582 4,077,426

On behalf of the Corp.

Acting Chaimian of the
Artur Ѕomov

сщ,
Chief Accountant
Ѕvitlana РoІtoгak5



Unlied Mining and Chemical Соn’репу, .ІЅС
Financial ѕiaieinentѕfor the year ended 31 December 2020.

Date (year, month, day 2021 01 01

Entity: United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC EDRPOU Code 36716128

sTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME)
for 2020

Form No.2 DKUD code: ј 1801008 ј
I. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

. . For the same
Item Line For the reporting period of the Notescode period .previous_year

1 2 3 4

Sales revenue (goods, works, services) 2000 3,127,625 3,535,397 17
Cost of sales (goods, works, services) 2050 (2,074,819) (2,475,050) ‘8
Gross:
profit 2090 1,052,806 1,060,347
loss 2095 - -

Other operating income 2120 237,772 65,529 21
Administrative expenses 2130 (226,785) (190,352) 19
Sales costs 2150 187 380) (265,547) 20
Other operating costs 2180 (379,521) (397,231) 22
Financial performance from operating activities:
profit 2190 496,892 272,746
loss 2195 - -

Equity income 2200 - -

Other finance income 2220 1,684 1,505
Other income 2240 I 1,032 1 1,258
Finance costs 2250 (91,878) (87,634) 23
Equity expenses 2255 - -

Other costs 2270 (24) (73,192)
Profitl(loѕs) before taxation:
profit 2290 417,706 124,683
loss 2295
Income tax benefit (expenses) 2300 (48,529) (36,811) 24
Profit’(loss) Of discontinued operations afler taxation 2305 - -

Net pronti(Ioss):
profit 2350 369,177 87.872
loss 2355 - -

On behalf of the Company’ man; gement:

Acting Chairman of the
Artur Ѕomov

(Г~L»,
C f Accountant
Ѕvitlana Poltorak
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United Mining arid СЬепгiсаі Соіnрапу, ЈЅC
Financial ѕiateinentѕfor the year ended 31 December 2020.

ІІ. СОNІРRЕНЕNЅІУЕ INCOME

For the For the same
Line code reporting period of the

period previous year

Upwardl(downward) revaluation of non-current assets 2400
Upward!(downward) revaluation of financial instruments 2405
Cumulative exchange differences 2410
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 2415
Other cunјprelieјisive iјicoine 2445 (10,618) (18,492)
Other comprehensive income before tax 2450 (10,618) (18,492)
Income tax related to items of other comprehensive income 2455 (1,911) (3,328)
Other comprehensive income after tax 2460 (8,707) (15,164)
Comprehensive income (sum of lines 2350, 2355 and 2460) 2465 360,470 72,708

III. OPERATING EXPEN$EЅ BY ELEMENTs

For the For the same period
Item Line code reporting of the previous year

period

1 .

Material costs ј 2500 (947,123) (1,274,209)

_________ 2505 (699,777) (706,398)
Social charges 2510 (174,392) (І76,557)
Depreciation and amortization 2515 (193,589) (288,470)
Other operating costs 2520 (853,624) (882,546)
Total 2550 (2,868,505) (3,328,180)

Item

1

IV. PER SHARE DATA

For the For the same period
Line code I reporting of the previous year

period

Average annual number of ordinary shares 2600 1,944,000,000 1,944,000,000
Diluted average number of ordinary shares 2605 1,944,000,000 1,944,000,000
Basic net earnings (loss) per ordinary share 2610 0.18991 0.04520
Diluted net earnings (loss) per ordinary share 2615 0.18991 0.04520
Dividends per ordinary share 2650 - -

On behalf of the

Acting Chairman of th
Art’n Ѕomov

Chief Accountant
Ѕvitlana Poltorak

ј CODES



United Mining and Chemical Сопіраnу, ЈЅC
Financial siatenients for tIre year ended 31 Dccc,,, her 2020.

Date (year, month, day 2021 ј Dl ј 01
Entity: United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC EDRPOU 36716128

Code

sTATEMENT ov CASH FLOWS
(Direct Method)

for 2020

Form No.3 DKUD code: ј 1801004
. For the reporting For the same period

Item Line code . .period of the previous year
1 2 3 4

I._Cash_flows_from_operating_activities
Proceeds from:
Sales of finished goods (merchandise, ‘vorks and services) 3000 1,579,850 3,283,049
Refunds of taxes and duties 3005 264,040 280,230
including VAT 3006 264,040
Targeted financing 3010 11,762 210
Prepayments from buyers and customers 3015 870,808 203,616
Receipts from the repayment of advances 3020 35,923 66,728
Iјttcicѕtѕ cii cuiient bunk uccoui:ls 3025 8,101 15,’І 10
Penalties, fines and forfeits received 3035 5,321 496
Otherproceeds 3095 2,073 15,822
Expenditures on:
Purchase of goods, works and services 3100 (939,719) (1,395,637)
Wages and salaries 3105 (588,928) (555,222)
Social charges 3110 (159,683) (151,924)
Taxes and duties payable 31 15 (431,006) (409,480)
Incometaxpaid 3116 (100,673) (78,413)
Other taxes and duties paid 3117 () (2)
Other taxes and duties paid 3118 (330,333) (331,065)
Advancespaid 3135 (787,420) (899,854)
Repayment of advances 3140 (2,333) (332)
Other expenditures 3190 (44,134) (62,056)
Net cash flow from operating activities 3195 (174,745) 391,056

II. Cash_flows_from_investing_activities
Receipts from sales of:
financial investments 3200 - -

non-сuпепt assets 3205 - -

Proceeds from:
Interests received 3215 - -

Dividends received 3220 - -

Receipts from derivatives 3225 - -

Other proceeds 3250 - -

Payments for acquisition of:
financial investments 3255 - -

non-current assets 3260 (168,808) (142,539)
Payments for derivatives 3270 - -

Other payments 3290 - -

Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities 3295 (168,808) (142,539)
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Financial ѕlatemenBѕ for the year ended 3! Decen,be, 2О2О~

sTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(Direct Method)

For the Year 2020

Line For the reporting For the same period
tem code period of the previous year

1 2 3 4
III. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds &om:
Equity 3300 - -

Loans received 3305 - -

Other proceeds 3340 -

Expenditures for:
Purchase of treasury shares 3345 - -

Repayment of loans 3350 - -

Payment of dividends 3355 (50,368) (34,466)
Interest paid 3360 - -

Other payments 3390 - -

Net cash flow (used ln)јfrom financing activities 3395 (50,368) (34,46’)
Net cash flow for (he reporting period 3400 (393,921) 214,051
Cash and cash equivaIents at the beginning of the reporting period 3405 405,292 264,036
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3410 23,557 (72,795)
Cash and cash equivaients at (he end of the reporting period 3415 34,928 405,292

On behalf of

Acting Chairman of
Artur Ѕoniov

‚ф,ґ ‘—,
Chief Accountant
Ѕvitlana Poltorak



United Mining and СћепіkaІ Сопфaпу, ЈЅC
Financial sва’е,nепњfor the year ended 31 December 2020

CODEs
Date (year, month, day 2021 ј Ci ј 01

Entity: United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈЅC EDRPOU Code 36716128

sTATEMENT OF CHANGEs IN EQUITY
for 2020

Item Line Registered Revaluation Additional Reserve Retained eanlings Unpaid Withdrawn
. . . . . (accumulated . . Totalcode (share) capital surplus paid-in capdal capital dеЛсіі capital capital

I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Balance at the beginning of the year 4000 1,944,000 - 503,146 60,102 (I 5,038) - - 2,392,210
Adјustmenis: 4005

Changes in accounting policy

Conectionofermrѕ 4010 - - - - - -

Otherchanges 40%

Balance at the beginning of the year (restated) 4095 1,944,000 - 503,146 60,102 (115,038) - - 2,392,210

Net protul(Ioss) for the reporting period 4100 - - 369,177 - - 369,177
Other comprehensive Income for the reporting period 4110 - - (8,707) - (8,707) - - (17,414)
Distribution of protit:

Payments to ownes (dividends) 4200 - - - - - .

Transfer to share capital 4205 - - - - - - -

Ti-ansferto reserve capital 4210 3,751 (3,751) - - -

Portion of net proft attributabIe to the State 4215 - - (184,589) - - (184,589)
Portion of net proft forthecreation of special funds 4220 - - 26,253 - (26,253) - .

Portion of net pmft for financial incentives 4225 7,50’ - (7,501) -

Contributions by shareholders: 4240

Contributions to share capital - .

Repayment of unpaid capital 4245 - - - . .

Withdrawal of ca?ital: 4260

Repurchase of shares

Sale of treasury shares 4265 - - - - . .

Cancellation of treasury shares 4270 - - - - - - -

Withdrawal of the share in equity 4275 - - . . . .

Other changes in equity 4290 - - (3.705) - 2 - - (3 703

Total changes in equј

Balance at the end
4295

Artur Ѕomov

21,342 3,751
4300 1,944,000 - 524,488 63,853 23,340 - - 2,555,681

nt:

~огѕ Cluf Accotntant
Ѕvitlana Poltorak

138,378 _____________ ‘63,471
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United Mining and СћеnйсаІ Соіпраnу, ІЅС
Financial хtаІе~пепІѕfor the year ended 3’ December 2020

Chief Accountant
Ѕvitlana Poltorak

—

CODES
Date (year, month, day 2020 ј 01

Entity: United Mining and Chemical Company, ЈSC EDRPOU Code 367 16128

STATEMENT OF CHANGEs IN EQUITY

for 2019

Line Registered Revaluation Additional Reserve Retained earnings Unpaid Withdrawn
Item . . . . . (accumulated . . Total

code (share) capital surplus paid-in capital capital deficit) capital capital

I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Balance at the beginning of the year 4000 1,944,000 - 472,136 54,354 (115,087) - - 2,3

Adjustments: . .
4005

Changes in accounting policy

Correction of enprs 4010 - . . - .

Other changes 40% - -

Balance at the beginning of the year (restated) 4095 1,944,000 - 472,136 54,354 (115,087) . - 2,355,407

Net protit/(Ioss) f.r the reporting period 4100 - 87.872 - - 87,872

Other comprehensive income for the reporting period 4110 - (15,164) - - (15,164)

Distributioa of profit:

Payments to ownes (dividends) 4200 - - . - - -

Transfer to share capital 4205 - - - - -

Transfer to reserve capital 4210 - 5.744 (5,744) . .

Portion of net profit attributable to the State 42 IS - (43,936) - (43,936)

Portion of net profit for the creation of special funds 4220 51,699 (51.699)

Other changes in~ ‘

Total changes in

On behalf

Portion of net profit for financial incentives 4225 22,977 - (22,977)

Contributions by shareholders:
4240 .

Contributions to share capital

Withdrawal of capital:
4260

Repurchase of sha-es

Cancellation of t~su~ sha~ 4270 - - .

Withdrawal of the share in equity 4275 - - - .

42%

Acting
Artur&

~юеnt:

4295

~сtoгѕ

(43,666)

31,010 5,744 49

51,698 8031
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United Mining and 0;emical Сопіраnу, ЈЅC
Fimnјcia! Ѕtatein en/sfor the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1. General information

Organizational structure and activities

Pursuant to Order No. 1074 of the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine dated 6 september 2014,
the right of economic management of the integral property complexes Vilnohirsk State Mining and Metallurgical Plant
and Irshansky State Mining and Processing Plant were assigned to the State Enterprise United Mining and Chemical
Company (Public Joint Stock Company United Mining and Chemical Company since 15 November 2016). Prior to this
date, these integral property complexes were transferred by the State Property Fund of Ukraine for a short-term lease to
another company. Upon the expiration of the lease agreement in 2014, the integral property complexes were put to the
books of the enterprise on the rights of economic management and in January 2015 were contributed to the share capital
of the State Enterprise United Mining and Chemical Company.

The Company hired people who had previously worked for a private company, and in February 2015 received special
permits for subsoil use. As a result of these events, the Company acquired a titanium ore mining business.

30 December 2015 The Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine decided to transform the State Enterprise United Mining and
Chemical Company into a joint stock company, one hundred percent of the shares of which belong to the state (according
to Order No. 1420-г). The Company Transformation Plan is approved by the Order of the Ministry of Economic
Development and Trade of Ukraine No. 553 dated 30 March 2016.

In 2017, the Company passed the procedure of stock issuance registration in the National Commission on Securities and
Stock Market of I ikraine

In 2018, the type of the Company was changed from a Public Joint Stock Company to a Private Joint Stock Company
and renamed to the Joint Stock Company United Mining and Chemical Company (hereinafter as the Company) based on
the Order of the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine No. 1955 dated 22 December 2018.

Legal address of the Company: 03035, City of Kyiv, 3 Surikova Str. Location: 01033, City of Kyiv, 35 Zhylianska Str.

The Company hns two separate divisions (branches with a separate balance sheet), which are differentiated by
geographical location:

. the branch Vilnohirsk Mining and Metallurgical Plant (hereinafter as VMMP branch);

. the branch Irshansky Mining and Processing Plant (hereinafter as IMPP branch).

The core activities of the Company include extraction of non-ferrous metal ores, beneficiation production (preparation of
sands for beneficiation, gravity beneficiation and production of collective concentrate) (zircon, ilmenite, rutile, distene
sillimanite, staurolite and quartz sand) and wholesale of metal ores.

Corporative Management

According to the Charter, the Company is managed by the following bodies:

. The General meeting of Shareholders;

. The Supervisory Board;

. The Board of Directors.

The supreme body of the Company is the General Meeting of Shareholders which is convened at least once a year. The
executive body of the Company is the Board of Directors which is headed by die Chairman of the Board of Directors.
The members of the Supervisory Board are elected and appointed by the General Meeting of shareholders.

Having completed the reorganization, the Company is in the process of establishing supervisory authorities. As at the
date of these financial statements, no Supervisory Board, as provided for by the Charter, was appointed.

Conditions of business activities in Ukraine

The Company operates in Ukraine. Although the Ukrainian economy is considered a market economy, it continues to
show certain characteristics of a developing economy. These characteristics include, but are not limited to, low liquidity
in capital markets, high inflation rate, and a significant deficit in the balance of public frances and foreign trade.

After a significant deterioration in 2014 and 2015, the current political and economic situation in Ukraine remains volatile.
In 2020, the Ukrainian government continues to implement a comprehensive structural reform program aimed at
eliminating existing imbalances in the economy, public finances and governance, fighting сoітuption, and reforming the
judiciary to provide conditions for economic recovery in the country.

The stabilization of Ukraines economy in the near future depends on the success of the governments actions and the
provision of continuous fmancial support to Ukraine by international donors and international financial institutions.

20



United Mining and Сће,nісаІ Соіnраnу, ЈЅC
Financial Statein antsfor the Year Ended 31 Deeenј her 2020

The National Bank of Ukraine continues to adhere to the policy of the floating exchange rate of the lnyvnia. During 2020,
the official exchange rate of lnyvnia to the US dollar of the National Bank of Ukraine increased by 16% from UAH
23.6862 for UЅD 1 as at 1 January 2020 to UAH 28.2746 for UЅD 1 as at 31 December 2020. During 2020, the National
Bank of Ukraine reduced the accounting rate from 13.5% to 6.0%.

In 2020, consumer inflation rose to 5.0% (from 4.1% in 2019), and real GDP growth amounted to 3.3%. Both the negative
dynamics of food prices and the weakening of the hryvnia exchange rate due to the introduction of quarantine measures
throughout 2020, contributed to the rise in inflation.

On 31 December 2019, the World Health Organization was informed that a limited number of cases of pneumonia of
unknown origin were detected in Wuhan, Hubei. On 7 January 2020, the Chinese authorities identified a new type of
coronavirus (СOУІD-19) as the cause. Since 31 December2019, the evolution and spread of COVID-1 9 has led to a great
number of related events. The beginning of 2020 was characterized by the spread of the pandemic caused by the
coronavirus СОУіD-19. The first case of coronavirus was detected in Ukraine on 3 March 2020.

To prevent the spread of СOУіD-19 in Ukraine, in March 2020 the Government of Ukraine introduced temporary
restrictions at the state border, ensured the abolition of regular transport and introduced other restrictions for the period
of national quarantine. Quarantine measures are periodically weakened and strengthened.

Following the outbreak of COVID- 19, the Company continues to monitor the situation closely and take precautions in
accordance with the recommendations of die World Health Organization and local authorities.

international rating agencies Fitch and Standard & Poor’s have kept the Ukraine’s sovereign rating at B level awarded in
September of the last year. The agencies noted that Ukraine had managed to demonstrate ‘timely access to fiscal and
external financing, improved macroeconomic stability and reduced budget debt’.

In preparing these financial statements, the known and estimated results of the above events on the financial position and
performance of the Company in the reporting period were taken into account.

2. Basis and general principles of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRЅ).
The IFRЅ include standards and interpretations approved by the International Financial Reporting Standards Board (IFRЅ
Board), International Accounting Standards (lAS) and interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)
approved by the International Standards Board which remain effective.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which provides for the sale of assets and
settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

Basis of estimate

The financial statements have been prepared on the initial (historical) cost basis, except for property, plant and equipment,
including construction in progress and intangible assets carried at the deemed cost as at the date of the Company’s
transition to IFRS (Notes Зе and Зg).

Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of Ukraine is the hryvnia, which is the Љnсtional currency of the Company and the currency in
which the indicators of these financial statements are presented. All financial information presented in UAH was rounded
to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

3. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The accounting policies adopted by the Company during the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
the accounting policies applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, except for the adoption of new standards and interpretations effective from 1 January 2021. The Company has not
early adopted any other standards, interpretations or amendments that have been matterd but are not yet effective.
Information on the nature and impact of these amendments is disclosed in Note 4. The new standards do not have a
material impact on either the Company’s annual financial statements or its financial statements.
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(b) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the presentation currency by converting the amounts in foreign
currency into Ukrainian lnyvnia at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

In February 2014, the National Bank of Ukraine atmounced the transition to a floating exchange rate regime. The official
NBU exchange rates are not necessarily the exchange rates at which foreign сuпеnсу is available at the reporting date. In
practice, market participants need to pay additional fees and сonшіissions in order to purchase foreign currency. In
addition, the supply of the required amount of foreign currency may not be available on the market.

Notwithstanding the above, management believes that the official NBU exchange rates provide the best approximation
to the exchange rates at the reporting date. Thus, in preparing these fmancial statements, the official exchange rates of the
NBU obtained Іі~oів officially published sources are used to translate transactions and balances in foreign currency.

As at 31 December and for the period ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the exchange rate of hryvnia to
major currencies is presented as follows:

Average rate for Average rate for
As at Dec 31, As at Dec 31,

the year ended the year ended
Currency 2020 Dec31, 2020 2019 Dec31, 2019

UЅU/UAH 28.2/ 26.96 23.69 25.84
EUR/UAH 34.74 30.80 26.42 28.94

The lnyvnia is not a freely convertible currency outside Ukraine and, therefore, any conversion of UAH in UЅD should
be treated as a statement that amounts in UAH have been, may be or will be in the future converted into UЅD at the
presented rate, or any other rate.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items are the difference between the amortized cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for the effective interest rate and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rates on a quarterly basis.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are carried at fair value, are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date of the fair value measurement. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are carried at historical cost, are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange differences arising from tnnslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising from
the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments that are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c) Financial instruments

ф Financial insin.nnents - basic approaches to measuring

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The best proof of fair value is the market quotation in an active market. An
active market is one in which transactions on assets and liabilities occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on a current basis.

A fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the amount obtained by multiplying the
quoted market price of an individual asset or liability by the number of instruments held by the entity. This happens even
when the normal daily trading turnover of the market is insurncient to absorb the number of assets and liabilities that the
organization has, and the placement of orders for the sale of positions in a single transaction may affect market quotations.

Measurement models, such as the discounted cash flow model, as well as the models based on data from similar
transactions performed under market conditions, or on the results of an analysis of the fmancial data of an investment
object, are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments for which there is market information about the
transaction price. Results of fair value measurement are analyzed and divided by levels in the fair value hierarchy as
follows: (i) Level I estimates are quoted market prices (not adjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
(ii) Level 2 measurements are the ones obtained with the help of the measurement models in which all used significant
inputs that are either directly (for example, price) or indirectly (for example, calculated on the basis of price) are observed
for the asset or liability, and (iii) Level 3 measurements are the ones which are not based solely on observable market
data (i.e. a significant amount of non-observable inputs is required for the measurement). Transfers between the fair value
hierarchy levels are those that occurred at the end of the reporting period (Note 23).

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, matter or disposal of a financial
instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not taken place.
Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisors,
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brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction
costs do not include premiums or discounts on debt obligations financing expenses, internal administrative expenses, or
storage expenses.

Depreciable cost is the amount at which a financial instrument was measured at initial recognition less any repayment of
the principal amount of the debt, reduced or increased by accrued interest, and for financial assets less the amount of
impairment losses. Accrued interest includes amortization of transaction costs dеfепеd at initial recognition and of any
premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and accrued interest
expense, including both accrued coupon and amortized discount or premium (including any fees deferred at origination,
if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of related items in the statement of financial
position.

(it) Initial recognition ofјlizanciai instruments.

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value through profit or loss, are initially recognized at fair value. All other
fmancial instruments are initially recognized at fair value including transaction costs. The best evidence of fair value at
initial recognition is the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference
between fair value and transaction costs which can be evidenced by other observable current market transactions with the
same instrument or by the measurement model whose inputs include only observable markets data. After initial
recognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost and investnients in debt instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, an estimated provision for expected credit losses is recognized, resulting in
recognition of the accounting loss immediately after initial recognition of the asset.

All purchases aiid sales of fmaiicial assets that iequuie deliveiy witliiјm Llme Lilac frame established by regulation or market
convention (‘regular way’ purchases and sales) are recorded at the trade date, which is the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell a financial asset. All other purchases are recognized when the entity becomes a party to a
contract.

(ii,) Classijication and subsequent ‘neasureinent ofјmnancial assets: measurement category

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL, based on the
following two criteria: (i) the entity’s business model for managing financial assets; and (ii) the contractual characteristics
of the cash flows of the financial asset. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 The Company had no financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(iv) Classijication and subsequent measurement ofјinancial assets: business n:odel

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows, whether or not the
Company’s objective is (i) only to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets (‘hold to collect the contractual cash
flows), or (ii) to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the assets (‘hold to collect
the contractual cash flows’), or, if neither (i) nor (ii) can be applied, the financial assets are classified as “other” business
models and are measured at fair value tlnough profit or loss.

Business model is identified for a group of assets (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant evidence of the activities that
the Company intends to carry out in order to achieve the objective set out for the portfolio available at the date of the
measurement. The factors considered by the Company in idеnti~’ing the business model include the objective and
composition of the portfolio, past experience in obtaining cash flows fl-or relevant assets, approaches to measuring and
risk management, methods of measuring return on assets, and the scheme of payments to managers.

(v) СіassіІісatќон and subsequent measurement ofјinancial assets: cash /lou’ characteristics

Where a business model provides for the holding of assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash
flows and sales, the Company estimates whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(‘Ѕolely Payments of Principal and interest’ or ‘ЅPPI Test’). Financial assets with embedded derivatives are treated in
combination to determine whether cash flows on them are the payments solely on account of principal and interest.

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic loan
arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for credit risk, time value of money, other basic loan agreement
risks and profit margin.

If the terms of the agreement provide for sensitivity to credit risk or volatility that do not meet the terms of the basic loan
agreement, the relevant financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. A ЅPPI test is
performed at initial recognition of the asset, and further revaluation is not carried out.

The Company’s trade receivables are held for contractual cash flows and are therefore subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Details of the Company’s impairment and expected credit loss policy are provided
in Note 8.
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(vi) Classijication ofј7nancial assets

Financial instruments are only reclassified if the business model of managing this portfolio changes as a whole.
Reclassification is carried out prospectively from the beginning of the first reporting period after the change of the
business model. The Company has not changed its business model during the current or comparative period and no
reclassification has been done.

(vii? Inzpairn:ent ofјTnancial assets.: estimated provision for expected credit losses

Based on the forecasts, the Company estimates the expected credit losses associated with debt instruments measured at
amortized cost and fair value tlnough other comprehensive income, and with the risks arising from loan commitments
and financial guarantee agreements. The Company estimates expected credit losses and recognizes an estimated provision
for credit losses at each reporting date. Expected credit loss estimate presents: (i) an unbiased and probability weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time value of money and (iii) all reasonable
and supported information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions.

The Company’s financial assets, which are subject to the new model of expected credit losses provided for in IFRЅ 9, are
represented by trade receivables. The Company applies the simplified approach provided in IFRЅ 9 to the estimation of
expected credit losses, which applies a provision for expected credit losses for the entire term for all trade and other
receivables and assets under the agreement. Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the requirements of IFRЅ 9 for
iinpainnent, the impairment loss was insignificant.

(viii) Write-off ofЎїііапсiаІ assets:

Financial assets are written off in whole or in part when the Company has exhausted all practical possibilities for collecting
them and has come to the conclusion that expectations for the recovery of such assets are unfounded. Write-off refers to
derecognition. Signs of an absence of reasonable expectations for recovery include:

. the counterparty is experiencing significant financial difficulties which is evidenced by financial information
about the counterparty at the disposal of the Company;

. the counterparty considers the possibility of declaring bankruptcy or financial reorganization;

. there is a negative change in the payment status of the counterparty due to changes in national or local economic
conditions that affect the counterparty.

The Company may write off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement measures when the Company attempts
to recover amounts owed under the contract, although there are no reasonable expectations for their recovery.

(ix) Derivatives

Derivatives, including foreign exchange contracts, interest rate futures, future interest rate agreements, currency and
interest rate swaps, and currency and interest rate options, are carried at fair value. All derivatives are recognized as assets
if the fair value of those instruments is positive, and as liabilities, if their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value
of derivatives are included in profit or loss for the year. The Company does not apply hedge accounting. As at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020 The Company had no derivatives.

Sore derivatives embedded in financial liabilities and other non-fmancial contracts are separated from the basic contract
if their risks and economic characteristics are not closely related to the risks and characteristics of the basic contract.

(x) Modijication оfЛііапсiаі assets

Sometimes the Company reviews or otherwise modifies the contractual terms of fmancial assets. The Company estimates
whether the modification of the contractual cash flows is significant, taking into account, inter alia, the following factors:
the existence of new contractual terms that have a significant impact on the risk profile of the asset (for example,
participation in income or return on capital), significant changes in interest rates, changes in currency denomination, the
emergence of new or additional loan collateral that have a significant impact on credit risk, associated with the asset, or
a significant extension of the loan in cases where the borrower has no financial difficulties.

If the modified terms differ significantly, so that the rights to cash flows from die original asset emerge, the Company
derecognizes the original financial asset and recognizes the new asset at fair value. The renegotiation date is the date of
initial recognition for the purpose of calculating further impairment, including determining whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk. The Company also estimates whether a new loan or debt instrument meets the criteria for making
payments solely on account of the principal amount of the debt and interest. Any discrepancies between the carmying
amount of the original asset that has been derecognized and the fair value of a new substantially modified asset is
recognized in profit or loss, unless the difference is essentially related to a capital transaction with the owners.

Where the revision of the terms was caused by the counterparty’s financial difficulties and its inability to make the initially
agreed payments, the Company compares the initial and adjusted expected cash flows with the assets for significant
differences in risks and rewards as a result of modifications to the terms of the contract. If the risks and rewards do not
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change, then there is no significant difference between the modified asset and the original asset, and its modification does
not result in derecognition. The Company recalculates the gross book value by discounting the modified cash flows under
die agreement at the original effective interest rate (or at an effective interest rate adjusted for credit risk for acquired or
created credit-impaired financial assets) and recognizes the profit or loss from the modification in profit or loss.

(xl) Categories ofјinancial liability ineastuenrent

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for: (i) fmancial liabilities that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss: this classification applies to derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading,
contingent consideration recognized by the acquirer in a business combination, and other financial liabilities recognized
as such on initial recognition; and (ii) a financial guarantee agreement and loan commitments. The Company had no
financial guarantee agreements or loan commitments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020.

(xii) Derecognition ofjinancial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are discharged (i.e. when either the liability specified in the agreement
is discharged or the due date expires).

Exchanges of debt instruments with terms that differ materially between the Company and its original creditors, as well
as significant modifications to the terms of existing financial liabilities, are treated as derecognition of the original
financial liability and recognition of the new financial liability. The terms are considered to be materially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows in accordance with the new terms, including all remuneration paid less any
consideration recoived. discounted using an original effective inturest rate of at least 10% from the discounted present
value of other cash flows under the original financial liability.

In addition, other qualitative factors are taken into account, such as the currency in which the instrument is denominated,
the change in the type of interest rate, the new tenns of conversion of the instrument and the change in the restrictive
terms of the loan, If an exchange of debt instruments or a modification of the terms is treated as derecognition, all costs
or remunerations paid are recognized in profit or loss from derecognition. If an exchange or modification is not treated
as derecognition, all costs or remunerations paid are recognized as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liabilities
or amortized over the remaining life of the modified liability.

Modifications of liabilities that do not lead to their derecognition are treated as changes in the estimates by the cumulative
depreciation method retrospectively, with profit or loss recognized in profit or loss, if the economic content of differences
in book value does not relate to capital transactions with the owners.

(хіќ,) Offsettingjinancial instruinents

Financial assets or liabilities are offset and the statement of financial position reflects the net amount only when there is
a legally established right to offset the amounts reflected, as well as the intention to either offset or simultaneously sell
the asset and settle the liability. The right to offset under consideration (a) should not depend on possible future events
and (b) should have a legal possibility to be exercised in the following circumstances: (i) in the ordinary course of
business, (ii) in the event of failure to comply with liabilities (events of default), and (iii) in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy.

(d) Equity

ф Share capital

Ordinaiy shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the matter of new shares are recognized
as decrease in equity less any tax effects.

(ii) Additionalpaid-in capital

Other additional capital includes the amount of surplus of non-current assets and financial instruments, which is carried
out in cases provided by law and the provisions of International Financial Reporting Standards (if any), as well as
residential properties, water supply facilities, civil defense facilities, roads that cannot be transferred to the Company’s
share capital due to legal restrictions. The balance of additional capital on this sub-account decreases in case of revaluation
and disposal or depreciation of these assets, their impairment.

Additional capital also includes the amount of the formed fund of production development and the fund of financial
incentives for employees, by deducting a percentage of the amount of net profit for the period. The balance of such capital
is reduced by the amount of use of such funds for the needs of the entity and increases by contributions as a result of
redistribution of net profit.

(iii) Reserve capital

The Сompanу1s reserve capital is formed in accordance with the requirements of the current legislation of Ukraine and
by a resolution of the general meeting of shareholders, by deducting a percentage of the amount of net profit for the
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reporting period.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

W Recognition and ~неаsигепіепt

Property, plant and equipment are measured at their initial (historical) cost. The deemed cost of property, plant and
equipment, including construction in progress, and intangible assets, as at 1 January 2016, the date of the Company’s
transition to IFRЅ, was determined based on their fair value at that date. The fair value of property, plant and equipment,
including construction in progress, and intangible assets, was deterniined on the basis of an expert assessment as at 31
July 2016, performed for corporatization purposes, and applied as at 8 December 2016 at the date of transformation of
the SE UMCC in the PJЅC UMCC, and adjusted for depreciation for the period &om 1 January to 30 November 2016.

Acquisition cost includes costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The value of the assets created
for the account of own funds, includes the cost of materials, labor costs of key employees, and any other costs directly
related to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use, the cost of dismantling and transportation, the
cost of restoration of the tепitoгу on which these assets were located.

if significant components of a unit of property, plant, and equipment have different useful lives, they are treated as
separate units (principal components) of property, plant, and equipment.

Liquidation value is determined for all items of property, plant and equipment. The Company rcvicws the liquidation
value and useful life of the asset at the end of each financial year.

Profit or loss on disposal of a unit of property, plant, and equipment is determined by comparing proceeds from disposal
with carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment and recognized on a net basis in other income/other costs in profit
or loss.

Subsequent costs

The replacement cost of a portion of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of
that item if it is probable that future economic benefits , associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. At the same time, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Expenses
for the routine maintenance of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated from the time they are installed and ready for use, or, in the
case of assets created by the entity itsеlf~ from the time the asset is completed and ready for use. Depreciation is calculated
on the basis of the value of the asset, reduced by its estimated liquidation value. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis and recognized in profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of specific assets. Depreciation on land and
construction in progress (work in progress) is not calculated.

The useful lives at initial recognition of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Groups Useful lives

Buildings and structures 10-50 years;

Machinery and equipment 5-25 years

Vehicles 5-10 years;

Other property, plant and equipment 1-12 years;

Specialized asset for the restoration of land 8-18 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and liquidation values of property, plant, and equipment are reviewed at the end of
each financial year and adjusted if necessary.

(g) Intangible assets

(ј) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are measured at their initial (historical) cost. The deemed cost of intangible assets as at 1 January 2016,
the date of the Company’s transition to IFRS, was determined based on their fair value at that date. The fair value of
intangible assets was determined on the basis of an expert assessment as at 31 July 2016, performed for corporatization
purposes, and applied as at 8 December 2016 at the date of transformation of the SE UIV1CC in the PJSC UMCC, and
adjusted for amortization charge for the period flтom 1 January to 30 November 2016.
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(ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits inherent in the particular asset to
which they are attributable. All other costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(Hi) Ainodization

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets
from the date they are available for use.

The useful life of intangible assets is determined for each item separately, at the time of its carrying over to the balance
sheet, based on:

. the expected useful life of an item;

• the expected physical and moral wear and tear;

. legal or other restrictions on the life of an item and other factors.

The useful lives at initial recognition of the Company’s intangible assets are 2 - 20 years. The right to use land with an
indefinite term of the right of exploitation is not subject to dcprcciation.

The amortization method, liquidation value and useful life of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are
accounting estimates that are subject to analysis and adjusted when it is reasonably necessary.

(Ii) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of: cost or net realizable value. The actual cost of work in progress is determined by
the weighted average cost formula. The cost of production inventories is determined by the first-in first-out method
(FIFO). The cost of inventories includes the cost of acquiring inventories, the cost of production or processing, and other
costs of delivering them to their current location and bringing them to a condition suitable for use. The cost of inventories
produced and work in progress includes the corresponding share ofproduction overheads based on the Company’s normal
capacity utilization.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and sale costs.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, is reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the amount
of the expected recovery of the asset is estimated. Amount of expected recovery intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives or are not yet ready for use are estimated annually on the same date. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its expected recoverable amount.

The expected recoverable aniount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of the two values: value in use or fair
value less costs of sale. When estimating the value in use, future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to an asset
or cash-generating unit. For impairment testing, assets that cannot be individually audited are grouped into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset that are virtually independent of cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets, or cash generating units.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated in such a way as to reduce the carrying amount of the assets that are part of the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in previous periods, are measured at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication that the loss decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if the estimates used to determine
the expected recoverable amount changed. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would be determined net of depreciation or amortization if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

(ј) Employee benefits

State dеЛпеd contribution plans

The Company makes contributions for the benefit of its employees to the State Pension Fund and the Social Protection
Fund. These amounts are recognized in expenses in the period in which they are deducted.

State defined benefit plans

The Company makes one-time payments to its employees upon retirement in the manner prescribed by collective
agreements.
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In addition, the Company is obliged to reimburse the state for the amount of pension payments made by the state to
employees who worked in hazardous industries or in dirncult conditions, and therefore have the right to retire and the
appropriate pension before retirement age under Ukrainian law.

Expenses on such liabilities were accrued in these financial statements using the projected unit credit method in respect
of employees who are entitled to such benefits.

The net liability is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have eared for their services in
the current and prior periods; the amount of such payments is discounted to detennine their present value, which is
recognized in the balance sheet (statement of financial position). The discount rate is determined based on various sources
of information, including the yield on government bonds and high-quality corporate long-term bonds as at reporting date.

Revaluation of the net liability on defined benefit plans that includes actuarial gains and losses, income from plan assets
(except for interest), and the effect of an established maximum asset value of the pension plan (if any, other than interest)
is recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines net interest expenses on defmed
benefit plan liabilities for the period using the discount rate used to measure the defmed benefit plan liability at the
beginning of the year, up to the net defined benefit plan liability at that time, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit plan liability over the period as a result of the contributions and payments made. Net interest expenses
and other costs associated with defined benefit plans arc recognized in profit or loss.

If benefits under the plan change or if the plan is reduced, the change in benefits relating to services previously provided
by employees or the gain or loss on the reduction of the plan is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognizes gains arid losses from settlements under the defined benefit plan In the period In which those settlements are
made.

Other long-tern: benejits

The company pays one-time benefits to employees who reach a certain age. In respect of such payments, long-term
employee benefit liabilities are created which are covered by cash from operating activities.

The Company’s net liability for long-term benefits to employees that are not retirement benefits, is determined based on
the amount of future benefits earned by employees in the current and prior periods. Thereafter, the amount of the benefits
is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of the plan assets is removed from accounting. The discount
rate is determined taking into account various sources of information. The calculation is performed using the projected
unit credit method, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

Reserve for reclamation of disturbed land plots

Reserve for reclamation of disturbed land plots are formed for expected future costs, for closing and restoration of the
asset, as well as costs for environmental rehabilitation of the asset (determined by an independent expert) in die reporting
period during which the relevant environmental intervention occurs. The amount of provisions is discounted, and the
increase in the provisions over time is included in fmancial expenses. The reserve is capitalized as part of specialized
assets and depreciated over the future operation of the land plot to which it belongs. The reserve for reclamation of
disturbed land plots is reviewed annually for changes in cost estimates, discount rates or service life. Changes in the
estimate of future costs or in the discount rate are added or deducted &om the relevant asset.

(k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a current legal or constructive liability as a result of a past event, which
can be measured reliably, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle this liability. The amount of provisions is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks inherent in
the particular liability. Release of the discount is recognized as part of financial expenses.

(1) Recognition of net sales (revenue)

Revenue is income that arises in the normal course of business of the Company. Revenue is recognized in the amount of
the transaction price. Transaction price is the amount of consideration the right for which the Company expects to receive
in exchange for the transfer of control over the promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts received
on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognized net of discounts, refunds and value added tax, export duties and other similar mandatory payments.

The Company’s contracts with customers are fixed-fee contracts and usually include advance and defeued payments for
a single contract. Typically, sales are made with a credit term of 60-120 days and, as a result, trade receivables are
classified as current assets.

Receivable are recognized when the goods are delivered in accordance with the terms of delivery specified in the contract,
as at this time the consideration is unconditional based on the fact that the due date is due only over time (Note 8). Assets
under contracts are insignificant and, accordingly, are not listed separately in the financial statements.
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Obligations under a contract is the obligation of the entity to transfer to the customer goods or services for which the
entity has received consideration &om the customer. Obligations under a contract are recognized in the item ‘Сuпеnt
payables on advances received1 of the statement of fmancial position.

Revenue from sales of finished goods

Revenue is recognized at the moment of the transfer of control over the goods, i.e. when the goods are delivered to the
customer, the customer has full discretion over the goods and there is no default that could affect the customers acceptance
of the goods. Delivery is deemed to have taken place when the goods have been delivered to the designated place, the
risks of depreciation and loss have passed to the customer and the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with
the contract, the validity of the acceptance regulations has expired or the Company has objective evidence that all
acceptance criteria have been met.

Revenue from sales at a discount is recognized on the basis of the price specified in the contract, less estimated discounts
for the volume. The expected value method based on accumulated experience is used to calculate and create a provision
for discounts, and revenue is recognized only in the amount for which there is a high probability that in the future there
will be no significant reduction in the recognized amount. Repayment obligation is recognized in relation to the expected
discounts on the amount payable to customers in respect of sales made before the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date

Components of financing

The Company does not enter into contracts in which the period between the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Accordingly, the Company does not adjust the transaction price
to the effect of the value of money over time.

(m) Other operating income and other operating expenses

Other operating income includes interest income on cash and cash equivalents in bank accounts, income from operating
exchange differences, income from the sale of other сuпеnt assets, income from the provision of other services and other
operating incOme, interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Other operating expenses include deductions to the provision for doubtful debts, deductions to the provision for litigation,
maintenance costs for housing and utility services and sanatorium-and-health-resort facilities, interest for the use of
income tax installments and other operating expenses.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized on a net basis as other operating income or other operating expenses,
depending on exchange rate fluctuations that result in either a net profit or a net loss item.

(n) Finance costs

Finance costs include interest expense on pension plan payments and amortization of the provisions for reclamation.

(0) Income tax

Income tax expenses consist of current and dеfепеd taxes. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income. In this case, it is recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current income tax consists of expected tax payable or recoverable, calculated on the basis of taxable profit or loss for
the year, using tax rates effective or substantively effective at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable on
the taxable income for previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the temporary differences at their reversal, in accordance with the laws effective or substantively effective at
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are derecognized if there is a legal right to offset current assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or from different entities,
but if such entities intend to make settlements on current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets will be
sold simultaneously with the repayment of their tax liabilities.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and temporary differences attributable to gross
expenditure if it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.
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(p) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that conducts business activities that may result in revenue and
expenses inсuпеd, including revenue and expenses from transactions with other components of the Company. All results
of the operating segment are regularly analyzed by management in order to make decisions about the allocation of
resources between segments and evaluate their fmancial results for each operating segment.

Segment results that are reported by management include items that relate to die segment directly, as well as those that
can be attributed to it on a reasonable basis. Items that have not been segmented include mainly corporate assets, head
office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

In order to manage the Company, it is divided into business divisions, based on the Company’s structural divisions, which
carry out production and provision of services. Based on geographical location, the Company is divided into two
segments:

. die branch Vilnohirsk Mining and Metallurgical Plant;

. the branch Irshansky Mining and Processing Plant.

(r) Leases

The determination ofwhether a transaction is or contains a lease is based on an analysis of the substance of the transaction.
An entire contract, or ports thегеof~ is a lease if the contract conveys a right to control thc usc of an identified asset for a
specified period in return for compensation.
Company as a lessee
At the commencement of the lease, the Company as a lessee measures a right-of-use asset at cost, which should comprise
the following:

- die amount equal to the lease liability at its initial recognition;
- lease payments made at or before the commencement of the lease less any lease incentives received;
- any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset after the end

of the contract.
At the commencement of the lease term, the Company measures its lease liabilities at die present value of die lease
payments not yet made at that date. Lease payments are discounted at die interest rate implicit in die lease agreement. If
such a rate cannot be easily determined, the Company uses the effective interest rate of additional boпowеd funds in the
same сuпеnсу, calculated from the last annual or interim financial statements made as of the date of the contract
conclusion.
Where the lease contract provides for the transfer to the lessee at the end of die lease term of substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a tangible non-current asset, including the option to purchase the asset at residual value, the
Company accounts for property, plant and equipment on its balance sheet in accordance with lAS 16 Property, Plan! and
Equipment. in other cases, the lessee accounts for the lease right as a right to use an asset in accordance with lAS 38
Intangible Assets.
The Company does not apply the above requirements to recognize assets and liabilities under short-term leases or leases
where die underlying asset has a value less than UAH 200 thousand.
The lessee recognizes lease payments under such leases as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease teun

Company as a lessor
Leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Initial direct costs inсuпеd in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are included in the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognized over die lease term pro rata to the income from die lease. Contingent lease payments are
recognized as income in the period in which they are accrued.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The value of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities depends on managements assessment of the lease term and the
applied rate of attraction of additional borrowing.

The lease term corresponds to the term of die lease agreement, which is not subject to termination, except when there is
sufficient confidence in the extension of this contract.
When assessing the lease tenns, the Company’s inanageineiit amialyzes all the facts amid circuinslaiices that may affect the
economic feasibility of prolongation of lease agreements.
The rates of additional borrowing of the lessee are defmed as interest rates that the Company would have to pay for
borrowing funds for a similar period and with similar collateral required to obtain an asset with a value comparable to the
value of the asset from die right to use in a similar economic environment.
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Range of useful lives of right-of-use assets:
Type of asset Asset depreciation rate (years)

Buildings, structures and other property 2-5

4. New standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards and interpretations

Joint Stock Company United Mining and Chemical Company adopts the following amendments to IFRЅ, adopted as at
31 December 2020:

1. IFRЅ 9 Financial Instruments, lAS 39 Financial Іnзtгшпепts: Recognition and іnеаsигеінеп4 lAS 7 Financial
Instnnnents: Disclosures, IFRЅ 4 Insurance Contracts, and IFRЅ 16 Leases. In August 2020, the IFRЅ Board, as part of
the IBOR Reform, published amendments that complement those issued in 2019 and focus on the implications of the
interest rate benchmark reform on a company’s fmancial statements that arise when, for example, the interest rate
benchmark used to calculate interest on a financial asset is replaced by an alternative interest rate benchmark. The phase
2 amendments address matters that may affect йnanсіal reporting during the interest rate benchmark reform, including
the effects of changes in contractual cash flows or hedging relationships arising from the replacement of the interest rate
benchmark by an alternative interest rate henclunark (replacement matters). During the phase 2 of their project, the Board
amended the requirements of the mentioned standards concerning:

changes in contractual cash flows - a company will not have to derecognize or restate carrying amount of
finaLicial іІІ~tLLІtїІС’Іts Гоі die cluniges iequbed by tILe tcfotni, but instead update die effecdve hiteiost ia(e to јefloct the
change to an alternative iiiterest rate benchmark;

hedge accounting - a company will not have to stop hedge accounting exclusively because it makes the changes
required by the reform if the hedging meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

disclosures — an entity shall disclose information about new risks arising &om the reform and how it manages
the transition to alternative interest rates.

The Phase 2 amendments apply only to changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform for financial instruments
and hedging relationships (effective date is January 1,2021).

2. lAs 16 ProperLy, Plant and Equipment. The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property,
plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its
intended use. Instead, the Company recognizes such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss (effective date is I
January 2022).

3. іАЅ 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The amendments clarify that ‘contract performance
costs’ are costs directly related to the contract - i.e. either additional contract performance costs (for example, direct labor
and material costs) or the allocation of other costs that are also directly related to the contract (for example, the distribution
of depreciation of the item of the property, plant and equipment used in performing the contract) (effective date is 1
January 2022).

4. IFRЅ 3 Business Сonгbinatiоns. Updating the references iii IFRЅ 3 Lu die Conceptual Haniework Basis of Financial
Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations. An exception for liabilities and
contingent liabilities has heen added. This exception requires that for certain types of liabilities and contingent liabilities,
an entity that applies IFRЅ 3 must refer to lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, or
Interpretations of iFRIC 21 Levies, and not to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting of 2018 (effective date
is 1 January 2022).

5. Annual amendments to IFRЅ (2018-2020): IFRЅ 1. A subsidiary that first applied iFRЅ. The amendment allows a
subsidiary that applies IFRЅ ito: Dl 6 (a) (which adopts IFRЅ later than its parent company), to estimate the cumulative
effect of exchange rate differences on other comprehensive income - based on such an assessment by the parent company
on the date of its transition to iFRЅ (effective date is 1 January2022).

6. Annual amendments to iFRЅ (2018-2020): IFRS 9. Commissions to be included in the 10 percent test when
derecognizing fmancial liabilities. The amendment clarifies the nature of such commissions - they include only the
consideration paid between the lender and the bonower, including the consideration paid or received from the person of
other parties (effective date is January 1,2022).

7. Annual amendments to IFRS (2018-2020): IFRЅ 16. Facilitating lease payments. The amendment clarifies illustrative
example No. 13 to IFRЅ 16 by excluding the example of accounting for the recoverable amount received by a lessee from
a lessor as compensation for costs incuned to improve the leased item.

8. Annual amendments to IFRЅ (2018-2020): lAS 41. Tax effects in fair value measurement. The amendment excludes
the requirement in lAS 41:22, which states that tax-related cash flows are not included in the calculation of the fair value
of biological assets. The amendment reconciles lAS 41 and ‘FR (effective date is January 1, 2022).
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9. ІАЅ I Presentation of Financial Statements The amendments clarify the criterion in ins i for classifying a liability as
long-term: a requirement for an entity to have the right to defer repayment for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
The essence of the amendments:

it is clarified that a liability is classified as long-term if an entity has the right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months and a company’s right to defer settlements must exist at the end of the reporting period;

the classification depends only on the existence of such a right and does not depend on the probability that a
company plans to exercise this right - the classification is not affected by the intentions or expectations of management
as to whether the company exercises its right to defer settlements;

clarification of the effect of credit tenns on the classification - if the right to defer settlement of a liability depends
on an entity’s compliance with certain conditions, then this right exists at the end of the reporting period only if the entity
meets those conditions at the end of the reporting period. The entity shall comply with these conditions by the end of the
reporting period, even if the creditor verifies their compliance at a later date; and

clarification of the requirements related to the classification of the liabilities that a company may repay by issuing
its own equity instruments (effective date is 1 January 2023).

10. IFRЅ 17 Insurance Contracts. Exclusion of certain types of contracts from the scope of IFRЅ 17. Simplified
presentation of assets and liabilities related to insurance contracts in the statement of financial position. The effect of
accounting estimates made in previous interim fInancial statements. Recognition and allocation of acquisition cash flows.
Change in the recognition of compensation under reinsurance contracts in the statement of income or loss. Allocation of
the. margin for investment services provided by the insurance contract (CЅM). Ability to reduce fmancial risk for inward
reinsurance contracts and non-derivative financial instruments. Deferring the effective date of IFRЅ 17, as well as
extension of the period of relief from applying IFRЅ 9 for insurance companies until January 1, 2023. Simplified
accounting for loss settlement under contracts that arose before the date of transition to iFRЅ 17. Easing in the use of
techniques to reduce financial risk. Ability to defme an investment contract with the conditions of discretionary
participation at the time of transition to the new standard rather than at the time of the contract (effective date is January
1,2023).

5. Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s IFRЅ financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts of income and expenses, assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates may
have consequences that may require significant adjustments to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in the future.

The key assumptions concerning possible future events and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are given below:

Management makes this assessment on an ongoing basis, based on past results and experience, expert advice, trends, and
other methods that management considers appropriate in certain circumstances, as well as forecasts of how they may
change in the future. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future events may change due to changes
in the market or circumstances that arise outside the Company’s control. Such changes are reflected in assumptions as
they occur.

Fair value measurement

Some of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosure rules require measurement of

the fair value of both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between participants at the measurement date. The fair
value was measured for the purpose of estimating and disclosing information using the following methods. Where
necessary, additional information about assumptions made in the process ofmeasuring the fair value of an asset or liability
is disclosed in the notes relating to that asset or liability. In assessing the fair value of a non-financial asset consideration
is given to the ability of a market participant to generate economic benefits tlnough the best and most efficient use of the
asset or through its sale to another market participant that would use the asset in the best and most efficient manner.

Receivable for products, goods, works, services and other current receivables

The fair value of receivables for products, goods, works, services and other current receivables is measured as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market mterest rate at the reporting date. ‘Ibis fuir value is measured fur
disclosure purposes or in the case of receiving receivables for products, goods, works, services and other current
receivables as a result of a business combination.
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Depreciation

The Company calculates depreciation of property, plant and equipment based on their expected useful lives. These
assumptions are based on management’s knowledge of these assets and their application. Assumptions about expected
useful lives are reviewed annually.

Loss from impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company annually estimates property, plant and equipment for impairment. In determining the need to attribute an
impairment loss to the cost, the Company estimates whether there is any data available for study that evidence reduction
of the expected future cash flows &om the asset. Management makes assumptions about both the amount and timing of
future cash flows. If applicable, the Company applies the discounted cash flow method to determine the net present value.

The impairment test used fair value models of assets that belong to Category 3 (assumptions and indicators that cannot
be compared with market quotations).

Net realizable value of inventories

Management estimates the need to recognize inventories at realizable value, taking into account the prices formed after
the end of the reporting period and the purposes for which inventories were created. If the cost of purchasing inventories
cannot be fully recovered, the Company will need to adjust the cost of inventories to their net realizable value.

Reserve for reclamation of disturbed land plots

I lie company estimates the reclamation reserve. Management makes significant estimates and assumptions in
determining the reserve because there are many factors that may affect the actual fmal amount of the liability. These
factors include an estimate of the reclamation area and the costs required for reclamation, changes in legislation, changes
in inflation and the discount rate. Such uncertainties may cause actual costs to differ &om the created reserve. The reserve
at the reporting date is management’s most appropriate estimate of the present value of future reclamation costs.

Estimate of expected credit losses

An estimate of expected credit losses is a significant estimation value, for which the estimation methodology, models and
initial data are used. Details of the methodology of expected credit losses estimation are disclosed in Note 24. The
Company regularly revie’vs and validates the models and initial data for the models in order to reduce the discrepancies
between the estimated expected credit losses and the actual loan losses.

Write-off policy

Financial assets are written off in whole or in part when the Company has exhausted all practical possibilities for collecting
them and has come to the conclusion that expectations for the recovery of such assets are unfounded. Determining cash
flows for which there are no reasonable expectations of recovery requires judgments. Management has considered the
following indications of a lack of reasonable expectations that the following assets will be recovered: liquidation process,
bankruptcy proceedings, fair value of security below recovery costs or continuation of enforcement measures.
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6. Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and construction in progress

The movement of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, construction in progress for the year ended 31
December 2020 and for the year ended 3 1 December 2019 was presented as follows:

As at Dec 31, 2018
Receipts
Disposals
Transfer
Impainaent

As at Dec 31, 2019

Receipts
Disposals
Transfer
Impainnent
4’~аt Dcc ?!, 7070

Accumulated depreciation and
anјortization
As at Dec 31, 2018
Depreciation and amouiution
charges
Removal of depreciation and
amortization

Asat Dec31, 2019
Depreciation and amortization
charges
Removal of depreciation and
amortization
As at Dec 31,2020

Net carrying amount

As at Dec 31, 2018

As at Dec 31,2019
As at Dec 3І, 2020

605,915 659,380 330,724 99,027 329,681 84,644 46,635 2,156,004

34,833 63,597 9,902 14,946 10,251 1,734 107,418 242,686
- - - (806) - - (806)

22,660 10,431 857 - (3,402) - (30,548) -

(25 955)- (20,507) (1,225) (16,328) (837) (2,935) (5100) (72,887>

637,458 712,901 340,258 97,645 334,887 83,443 118,405 2,324,997
25,916 64,917 47,376 16,497 41,343 622 238,285 434,956

- (16) (2,113) - (567) - (224,009) (226,705)
24,954 22,721 8,571 - 16,472 - (42,077) 30,641

~ 6881328 800,523 394,092 114,142 192,нs 84,065 90,604 2,563,889

010,726) (383,500) (101,025) 9,514 (159,116) (14,075) - (758,928)

(56,642) (123,890) (60,936) (17,473) (7,309) (3,981) (270,231)

- - - 806 806

(167,368) (507,390) (161,961) (7,959) (165,619) (18,056) - (1,028,353)

(40,129) (57,800) (53,445) (8,405) (40,374) (4,438) - (204,591)

- - - 594 - 594

(207,497) (565,190) (215,406) (16,364) (205,399) (22,494) - (1,232,350)

495,189 275,880 229,699 108,541 170,565 70,569 46,635 1,397,076

470,090 205,511 178,297 89,686 169,268 65,387 118,405 1,296,644

480,831 235,333 178,686 97,778 186,736 61,571 90,604 1,331,539

As at 31 December 2020, the initial cost of fully depreciated items that are still in use was UAH 154,450 thousand (31
December 2019: UAH 165,467 thousand).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment that is temporarily not used amounted to
UAH 29,456 thousand (31 December 2019: UAH 23,167 thousand).

As at 31 December2020, the carrying amount ofproperty, plant and equipment that was retired from use and not classified
as held for sale amounted to UAH 81,372 thousand (31 December 2019: UAH 77,761 thousand).

The amount of materials capitalized in the value of property, plant and equipment as at the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to UAH 18,658 thousand (for 12 months of 2019: UAH 53,334 thousand).

Value of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 July 2016, an independent appraiser has determined the fair value of the Company’s intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment, including construction hi progress, to determine their fair value for the purposes of
corporatization. This fair value of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress,
was used to determine the Company’s contributions to the Company’s share capital as at 8 December 2016, the date of
the Company’s transformation &om a state-owned enterprise to a public joint stock company, and adjusted for
depreciation and amortization fiom 1 January 2016 to 30 November 2016. The obtained value in the amount of UAH
113,613 thousand of intangible assets, UA}I 1,602,546 thousand of property, plant and equipment, and UAH 14,759
thousand of construction in progress was accepted by the Company’s management as a deemed value as at 1 January
2016, the date of the Company’s transition to International Financial Reporting Standards.

Historicat cost
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In addition, the Company increased the cost of property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress, acquired
during the seven months ended 31 July2016, to their fair value as at 31 July 2016, determined by an independent appraiser
at that date. This change amounting to UAH 19,320 thousand was recognized by the Company as part of other changes
in equity in the statement of changes in equity, as it was made to determine the value of net assets, which was used to
calculate the increase in the share capital in the process of corporatization.

Most of the property, plant and equipment and construction in progress are highly specialized equipment that is
infrequently sold on the open market, except when it occurs as a part of an ongoing business. Apart from a few buildings,
the valuation of which was carried out on the basis of recent market transactions with similar buildings in a similar
technical condition, the market for such property, plant and equipment is not active in Ukraine and does not provide
sufficient comparable sales, which does not allow market approach to determine fair value.

Therefore, the fair value of property, plant and equipment was determined mainly using the replacement cost method less
depreciation. According to this method, the cost of restoration or replacement of property, plant and equipment, adjusted
for physical, functional or economic wear and tear, as well as for obsolescence, is taken into account. Economic
depreciation was determined using the discounted cash How method.

The replacement cost less depreciation is estimated on the basis of data obtained from domestic sources and the results
of the analysis of the Ukrainian and international markets for similar property, plant and equipment. Various market data
are collected horn published iiifornјalion, caalogs, statisics, etc. In addition, hidusry experts were involved in the
evaluation process.

An analysis of the existeiice of econonnc iinpahirieiit was also petfoiiiied using die discounted cash flow uiediod in
deteixriiniiig die fah value of piopeity, plant and equipineiiL, wInch did not tesull in an adjustment to die ievalued fair
value.

Specialized assets

On 31 December 2018, the Company has for the first time recognized provisions for the reclamation of disturbed land in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets. As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the provisions was fully included in the cost of property, plant and
equipment in the group ‘Ѕpecialized Assets’ in the amount of UAH 620,285 thousand. (Note 12). The increase in the cost
of property, plant and equipment of this group resulted in the impairment of assets which was recognized as an individual
impainnent of specialized assets as at 31 December2019, as well as the impairment as at 31 December31, 2019. Due to
the absence of signs of impairment, no impairment test was performed in the reporting period.

Test for impairment of property, plant and equipment

As at 30 September 2019, the Company performed a test for impairment of property, plant and equipment, construction
in progress, and intangible assets. The impairment test was performed using historical financial information, as well as
key macro indicators that are characteristic of Ukraine’s economy in the coming years.

The test was conducted based on the calculation of the cost of use of property, plant and equipment, construction in
progress, and intangible assets by building discounted cash flows for the next 5 years. For the purposes of impairment
testing, the Company has identified two cash-generating units (hereinafter as COUs): production of ilmenite
concentrate — the branch Irshansky Mining and Processing Plant and production of zirconium, rutile and ilmenite
concentrates and other products &om extraction of non-ferrous metal ores - the branch Vilnohirsk Mining and
Metallurgical Plant.

Discounted cash flows were determined based on the nominal pre-tax discount rate of 23.5% -23.7% (2017: 25.4%-
25.9%).

The determined cost of use for the branch Vilnohirsk Mining and Metallurgical Plant CGU exceeded its book value as at
30 September 2019.

The determined cost of use for the branch the branch Irshansky Mining and Processing Plant CGU was below its book
value as at зо september 2019. The Company recognized the amount of impairment for the relevant groups of property,
plant and equipment, construction in progress, and intangible assets as at 30 September 2019, with the сoпеsponding
impact on profit and loss in the item ‘Other expenses’ in the amount of UAH 72,887 thousand.

Due to the absence of signs of impairment, the Company did not conduct an impairment test as at 31 December 2020.
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7. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the canying amount of the Company’s right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were presented as follows:

Dec 31, Dec 31,
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position 2020 2019

Right-of-use assets
ВuіИings, structures and other property 12,492 4,023
Total 12,492 4,023

Lease liabilities
Long-term lease liabilities 8,705 2,669
Сдпеnt portion of long-term lease liabilities 4,745 1,793
Total 13,450 4,462

Right-of-use assets are represented by office space lease agreements. The lease agreements are concluded
from 21 July 2020 to 30 June 2023 inclusive.

for the period

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 Dесеmbег2019, the book value of the Company’s right-of-use assets was as follows:

Movemeitt of right-of-use assets by groups
Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount as at 31 December 2019
Asset receipts
Asset disposals
Depreciation
Removal of depreciation
Net carrying amount as at 31 December 2020

Buildiiigѕ aiid ѕti uctuies
5,173

(1,150)
4,023

14,990
(5,173)
(2,498)

1,150
12,492

During the reporting period, the lease agreement was terminated due to the early disposal of the right-of-use asset. Also,
in July 2020, a new lease agreement was concluded (receipt of a right-of-use asset). The net book value of the asset at the
reporting date is UAH 12,492 thousand.

The total cash outflow fl-or the lease in 2020 amounted to UAH 7,232 thousand including VAT, in 2019 - UAH 3,541
thousand including VAT.

The Company applies the requiremeats of IFRЅ 16 Leases to agreements that were effective as at 31 December 2020 and
meet the criteria for lease recognition.

8. Inventories

As at 3 1 December 2020 and 31 December, the inventories were presented as follows:

Finished goods
Production stock
Reserve for impairment of production stock
Work in progress
Merchandise

31 December
2020

782,248
257,496
(4,996)
59,378

5
1,094,131

31 December
2019

539,177
256,794
(5,398)
53,209

22
843,804
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Production stock

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Spare parts 132,475 123,456
Raw materials 57,402 63,529
Purchasing semi-finished products and accessories 43,097 37,098
Fuel 12,435 14,352
Construction materials and components 12,087 18,359
Reserve for impairment of production stock (4,996) (5,398)

252,500 251,396

9. Receivables

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Tiade іссоі”&lЉѕ „1,3/5 66’І,314
Expected credit losses (16, ј 12) (55,716)

555,263 608,598

The Company applies the simplified method provided in IFRЅ 9 to the estimation of expected credit losses, which applies
an estimated provision for expected credit losses for die entire term for all trade and other receivables.
Levels of expected credit losses are based on sales payment schedules for the twelve months till 31 December 2019,
respectively, and similar historical credit losses inсuпеd during this period. Levels of losses of the past periods are not
adjusted for сuпеnt and projected information on macroeconomic factors, as the commitments to improve contract terms
are short-term and the effect of adjustments is not material.
The estimated provision for credit losses, as at 31 December 2020, in respect of trade receivables is determined in
accordance with the matrix of provisions presented in the table below. The provision matrix is based on the number of
overdue days of an asset:

. Expected creditCarrying losses for theamount . .entire period
Current 493,973 (5,017)
With a delay in payment of up to 30 days 62,264 (1,767)
With a delay in payment of3l-90 days 3,063 (163)
With a delay in payment of9l-180 days 4,729 (1,819)
With a delay in payment of 181-360 days 7,347 (7,347)
With a delay in payment above 360 days (0) (0)

Total financial assets as part of trade receivables 571,375 (16,112)
Estimated provision for credit losses (16,112)
Total financial assets as part of trade receivables (carrying amount) 555,263

Changes in the provision for credit losses for trade receivables during the year ended 31 December 2020, determined
according to a simplified model of expected credit losses, were presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Settlements with the state target funds 2,247 874
Other current debts 976 1,006
Settlements on claims 1,127,018 20,343
Provision for expected credit losses from debts on claims (308,362) (20,020)

821,879 2,203
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The Company’s management believes that the invaluable but overdue receivables will be received in full. An analysis of
credit risk on trade receivables is provided in Note 27.

Changes in the provision for losses from trade receivables impairment during the years ended 31 December 2019 were
presented as follows:

2019
Balance at January 1 (57,716)
Changes in estimates and assumptions (28,986)
Debt recovery income 29,826
Exchange rate difference 1 160
Balance at December31 (55,716)

10. Other current receivables

Other current receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Ѕetlements with the State target Љnds 2,247 874
Oher current debts 976 1,006
Settlements on claims 1127,018 20,343
Provision for expected credit losses from debts on claims (308,362) (20,020)

821,879 2,203

In May 2020, the Company terminated its contracts with Bollwerk Finanzierungs -und Industriemanagement AG and
Defessa Trans F.Z.E., the main sales counterparties, and acknowledged the default of these counterparties’ receivables to
the Company. The approach of discounting expected cash flows was used to calculate the provisions for expected credit
losses. The expected loss provision for receivables of these counterparties was 23% and 22% for Boliwerk Finanzierungs
-und Industriemanagement AG and Defessa Trans F.Z.E., respectively. Currently, the Company has filed lawsuits against
counterparties to recover receivables, these amounts are presented as Settlements on claims.

Defessa TotalBoliwerk
__________ Trans

Trade receivables 661,332 363,534 1,024,866
Expected credit losses (150,519) (81,688) (232,207)
Net carrying amount 510,813 281,846 792,659

Changes in the provision for credit losses on trade receivables during the year ended 31 December 2020, determined
according to a simplified model of expected credit losses, were presented as follows:

2020
Balance at January 1 (20,020)
Debt recovery income 14,566
Transfer to other сuпеnt receivables (47,690)
Impairment losses (251,284)
Exchange rate difference (3,934)
Balance at December 31 (308,362)
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December2019 were presented as follows:
Dec 31, 2020 Dec 31, 2019

Balances on current bank accounts 34,925
Balances on short-term deposit bank accounts -

Cash 3

22,240
383,047

5

34,928 405,292

The following table provides an analysis of cash and cash equivalents placed on bank accounts according to the ratings
of banks awarded by the rating agency Fitch, or their equivalents:

__________________ Dec 31, 2019
133,380

35,045
__________________ 236,862

405,287

B
Dec 31, 2020

34,850
75BBB

Сaa2
Rating is not available

34,925
12. Equity

As at 31 Dccembeј 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Company’s share capital amounts to UAH 1,944,000,000 (one
billion nine hundred forty-four million hryvnias 00 kopecks). The Company’s share capital is divided into 1,944,000,000
(one billion nine hundred and forty-four million) ordinary registered shares with a nominal value of 1.00 (one lnyvnia)
each.

The Company’s share capital was formed by adding to it the assets of the United Mining and Chemical Company in the
process of corporatization.

The sole shareholder of the Company is the state represented by the authorized management body, which directly without
convening a general meeting of the Company exercises the authority to manage the corporate rights of the Company.

Dividends

The profit for each reporting period available for distribution to owners is determined on the basis of fmancial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRЅ. Under Ukrainian law, the amount of dividends is limited to the amount of net income
for the reporting period or the amount of any other reserves to be distributed, but not more than the amount of retained
earnings calculated in accordance with the data of the iFRЅ financial statements.

For business entities, the share capital of which contains corporate rights of the state, the size of the rate of deduction of
the share of profit based on the results of each reporting year is set by the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine.

Dividendsfor 2018

For the year 2018, part of the Company’s net profit was directed to the payment of dividends in the amount of UAH
34,466.1 thousand at a rate of 30% in accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 364
dated 24 April 2019. The Company paid dividends in June 2019.

In accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 1015 dated 4 December2019, amendments
were made to the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 364 dated 24 April 2019, which determines the
basic rate of a profit share deduction which is directed to the payment of dividends on the results of financial and economic
activities in 2018 of business entities whose share capital includes corporate rights of the state in the amount of 90%.

Prior to these amendments, the rate of profit-sharing for 2018 was set for the Company at 30%. In accordance with this
rate and the order of the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine No. 723 dated 24 April 2019 the
Company’s net profit for 2018 was distributed in full, the share distributed on dividends amounted to 30% or UAH 34,466
thousand.

According to the amended rate in the amount of 90%, the share of profit for 2018 which is used to pay dividends, shall
be UAH 103,398 thousand. The additional amount of dividends is UAH 68,932 thousand.

In order to pay dividends by a joint-stock company, in accordance with the Law of Ukraine № 514-VT On Joint-Stock
Companies dated 17 September 2008, a corresponding resolution of the general meeting of such joint-stock company is
rcquircd. Distribution of the net profit for 2018 and (he payment of dividends for 2018 took place in accordance with the
current legislation of Ukraine. The Company has no other resolution of the general meeting, except for the order of the
Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine No. 723 dated 24 April 2019. The absence of a resolution of
the general meeting on redistribution of the net income for 2018 and the payment of dividends in the amount of 90% in

39



Financial ЅЃанпіеnіѕfort/іе Year Ended 31 December 2020
United Mining and Сhеіn lea! Company, .IЅC

Balance at 31 December 2018
Capital formation
Changes due to depreciation and
amortization
Use of capital
Balance at 31 December 2019
Capital formation
Changes due to depreciation and
amortization
Use of capital
Balance at 31 December 2020

Other
additional

paid-in
capital

95,813

accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers No. 1015 dated 4 December 2019 makes it impossible to
recognize the adjustment of previously recognized dividends and funds for 2018.

In January 2020, the Company filed a lawsuit with the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine to declare illegal and cancel the
requirements of the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 1015 dated 4 December 2019 on changes to
the basic rate of a profit share deduction. Thus, the Company’s management did not create provisions for possible future
payments of additional dividends for 2018.

Dividendsfor 2020

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the basic rate of the profit share allocation for companies whose
share capital has corporate rights of the state, approved by the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine, is expected in 2020 at
50%, so the Company has created appropriate provisions for the future transfer of the profit share to the State Budget of
Ukraine as part of current provisions at the level of the allocation rate (Note 13). As at the date of approval of these
statements for matter, the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine has sent for revision a draft resolution on the basic rate of a
profit share deduction of state-owned enterprises, which is aimed at paying dividends for 2020. The сoпеsрoпdiлg
resolution was approved at a meeting of the Cabinet of Ministers on 21 April 2020 at the suggestion of the Economy
Minister Ihor Petrashko.

(b) Additional paid-in capital

As at 31 December 2020 mid 31 Deceiribet 2019, die additioiuil paid-hi capital is presented us follows:

Production . .Financialdevelopment . . Totalincentive fundfoud

356,183 20,140 472,136
51,699 22,97? 74,676

- - (11,243) (11,243)
- (32,423) - (32,423)

407,882 10,694 84,570 503,146
26,253 7,501 33,754

(3,705) (3,705)
(8,707) (8,707)

434,135 9,488 80,865 524,488

Produclion development and ј?nancia! incentive Ліпd

In accordance with the orders of the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine, the Company forms a
fund for the development of production and financial incentives.

The production development fund was formed by distributing 35% of net profit for 2020 after settlements on dividends
(in 2019- 15% of net profit after settlements on dividends).

The fmancial incentive fund was formed by distributing 10% of net profit for 2020 after settlements on dividends (in
2019 - 5% of net profit after settlements on dividends).

Other additionalpaid-in capita!

Other additional paid-in capital was formed at the expense of the housing, water supply and civil defense facilities and
roads, which due to legal restrictions cannot be transferred to the share capital of the Company during reorganization
from a state enterprise into a joint stock company, but are included in the Company’s assets.

(d) Reserve capital

In accordance with the orders of the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of Ukraine, the Company forms a
reserve fund by distributing 5% of net profit for 2020 (in 2019-5% of net profit)

(e) Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable level of capital to ensure the confidence of investors, creditors and other
market participants, as well as to ensure the sustainable development of business activities in the future. Management
controls the return on capital, which the Company defmes as the ratio of operating income to the amount of equity. There
were no changes in approaches to capital management during the reporting period.

40



Fiјunzeiaј statementsfor the Year Ended 31 December 2020
United Mining and С/іе,nісаі Сопіраnу, ЈЅC

13. Retirement benefit liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the retirement benefit liabilities in the statement of fmancial position were presented as follows:

Non-current portion of liabilities
Current portion of liabilities (Note 13)

Other non-current
liabilities

16,584

As at 31 December2019, the retirement benefit liabilities in the statement of financial position were presented as follows:

Pension
liabilities

147,261
33,997

181,258

Other non-current
liabilities

13,153
2,463

15,616

Total
160,414
36,460

196,873

Changes in retirement benefit and other liabilities in the statement of financial performance were presented as follows:

Net liability as at 31 December 2018
Payments made
Losses recognized in profit or loss
Actuarial gain recognized in other
comprehensive income
Net liability as at 31 December 2019 ___________________________________________________________
Payments made
Losses recognized in profit or loss
Actuarial gain recognized in other
comprehensive income
Net liability as at 31 December 2020

The amounts recognized in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 are presented as follows:

Changes in provisions
Cost of current services
Interest expenses on retirement benefit liabilities

The amounts recognized in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 are presented as follows:

Other non-current
liabilities

(1,194)

The key assumptions used in determining the amount of retirement benefit liabilities were presented as follows:
2020 2019

Discount rate (IMPP branch) 11.00% 11.29%
Discount rate (VMMP branch) 11.01% 11.69%

Wage growth rates (IMPP branch) 10.00% 10.0%
Wage growth rates (VMMP branch) 10.00% 10.0%
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Pension liabilities
190,701

Total
207,285

41,666 3,230 44,896
232,367 19,814 252,181

Non-current portion of liabilities
Current portion of liabilities (Note 13)

Pension
liabilities

127,800

Other non-current
liabilities

15~711
Total

143,511
(5,904) (2,526) (8,430)
39,6H 3,689 43,300

19,748 (1,256) 18,492
181,255 15,618 196,873
(7,474) (2,344) (9,818)
47,073 7,436 54,509

11,511 (893) 10,618
232,367 19,814 252,181

Pension
liabilities

Other non-current
liabilities Total

37,481 7,037 44,518
26,465 2,406 28,871
20,608 1,685 22,293
84,554 11,128 95,682

Changes in provisions
Cost of current services
Interest expenses on retirement benefit liabilities

Pension
liabilities

23,662 2,735
15,948 1,855
39,611

Total

(1,194)
26,397
17,803
43,0073,396
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14. Reserve for reclamation of disturbed land plots

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the reserve for reclamation of disturbed land plots was presented as
follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Non-current portion of liabilities 559,576
Current portion of liabilities (Note 13)

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2019
Additional provisions made during the period and change in estimated
assumptions
Amounts used during the period
An increase over a period of the discounted amount that arises over
time
Eflbct of any change in the discount rate
Cat tying antouiit as at 31 December 2020 464,688

According to the legislation of Ukraine, the Company is obliged to indemnify
a result of its mining activities. The Company’s management believes that by
have sufficient grounds to reliably determine the value of the costs necessary
connection with the extraction of minerals.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has for the first time recognized provisions for reclamation of disturbed land plots
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard lAs 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has recalculated such liabilities.

The cost of reclamation of disturbed land plots is determined on the basis of amounts calculated by an independent expert.
The cost of reclamation is the discounted estimated cost of reclamation of disturbed land plots after depletion of their
reserves. As at 31 December 2020, the cost of reclamation was calculated on the basis of the nominal pre-tax discount
rate.

The key assumptions used in determining the amount of the commitment to rehabilitate the disturbed land plots were
presented as follows:

Discount rate (IMPP branch)
Discount rate (VMMP branch)

31 December
2020

11.4%
11.8%

31 December
2019

12.7%
12.6%

Long-term inflation rate (IMPP branch) 5.0%
Long-term inflation rate (VMMP branch) 5.2%

Increase/decrease of the discount rate by
Increase/decrease of the discount rate by
increase/decrease of the inflation rate by
Increase/decrease of the inflation rate by

1% (IMPP branch)
1% (VMMP branch)
1% (IMPP branch)
1% (VMMP branch)

60,709
620,285

490,925
47,673

538,598

УММР іIЧРР
Totalbranch branch

415,164 123,433 538,597

(9,116) 3,165 (5,951)

(11,468) (1,639) (13,107)

52,471 15,666 68,137

17,637 14,972 32,609
155,59! 620,285

the damage caused to the environment as
31 December 2018 the Company did not
to rehabilitate the land plots disturbed in

The impact of changes in the key assumptions

5.2%
5.8%

on the commitment to rehabilitate disturbed land plots is as follows:
Change the amount of liabilities

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
(7.7%) / 8.5% (8.5%) / 9.5%
(4.7%) / 5.0% (4.9%) / 5.3%
9.0% / (8.2%) 10.2% / (9.2%)
5.3% / (5.0%) 5.6%!(5.3%)
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15. Current provisions

Сuпепt provisions as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

Current provisions for dividend payments (Note 10 (a))
Сuпеnt portion of reclamation liabilities
Current portion of defmed benefit pension plan liabilities (Note 11)
Provisions for unused leave
Provisions for lawsuits and potential fines

31 December
2020

190,773
60,709
44,896
31,065

8,000
335,443

31 December
2019

43,936
47,673
36,460
28,122
27,894

184,085

16. Current payables

(a) Current trade payableѕ

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the current trade payables were presented as follows:

Payables for Љеl and gas
Payables for raw materials and supplies
Payables for transportation services
Payables for services of mining preparation activities
Payables for packaging and spare parts
Accounts payable for property, plant and equipment
Other payables

31 December
2020

36,835
37,675

8,243
43,049
25,334

9,628
62,272

223,035

31 December
2019

20,338
7,780

12,440
18,243
12,451
5,884
1,750

96,778

(b) Current payables for settlements with the budget

Subsoil use payable
Income tax payable
Personal income tax payable
Other tax payable

31 December
2020

58,406
40,346

7,948
4,996

111,696

31 December
2019

18,563
3,488
6,259
3,848

32,158
17. Net sales revenue

The net sales revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was presented

2020
Revenue &om sales of goods 3,109,755
Revenue from rendering services

as follows:

2019
3,516,692

18,705
3,127,625 3,535,397

For the year 2020, revenues from the Companys two main customers represented approximately 35% or UAH 1,102,742
thousand of the Company’s net income (2019: 80% or UAH 2 832 533 thousand).

17,870
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19. Administrative expenses

Admidstrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows;

Salaries, wages, and relevant accruals
Third-party company services
Depreciation and amortization
Materials
Electricity and gas
Bank services
Leases
Fuels and lubricants
Other administrative expenses

Transportation and shipping expenses
Salaries, wages, and relevant accruals
Tangible costs
Depreciation and amortization
Fuels and lubricants
Electricity and gas
Other sales expenses

Income from repayment of previously impaired doubtful debts
Income from opегatЊg exchange rate difference
Interest received
Fines, penalties and forfeits
Other operating income

2019

(148,576)
(36,947)
(18,168)
(14,902)

(9,073)
(1,857)

(36,024)
(265,547)

18. Cost of sales

The cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was presented as follows:

2020 ______

Cost of sales 2,074,002
Cost of services provided 817

2019
2,474,141

909
2,074,819 2,475,050

20192020
(149,516)

(43,715)
(1 1,304)

(7,330)
(4,041)
(3,068)
(1,771)
(1,626)

(142,134)
(5,051)
(4,414)
(9,075)
(4,927)
(3,626)
(1,923)
(7,469)

(11,733)
(190,352)

(4,414)
(226,785)

20. Sales expenses

Sales expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

2020
(155,801)

(14,539)
(7,604)
(1,513)
(2,482)

(646)
(4,796)

(187,380)

21. Other operating income

The other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December2019 was presented as follows:

20192020
15,454

202,178
7,301
3,406
9,433

30,593

14,066
10,495
10,533
65,529237,772
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22. Other operating costs

The other operating costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

2020 ___________________

Losses from operating exchange rate difference -

Costs of the maintenance of used quarries and factories that are temporarily ~І7 108
not used ‘

Deductions to the reserve for douЬtЉІ debts of trade and other receivables (264,209)
Maintenance of housing and utility services and sanatorium-and-health-resort 25 199)
facilities ‘

Expenses for the creation of pensions, salaries and related accruals (51,669)
Costs associated with legal proceedings - (8,024)
Other operating costs (21,336)

(379,521)

23. Finance costs

Financc costs associated with the геdщпаПoіі teseive (Note 12)
Finance costs attributable to the defined retirement benefit plan (Note
11)
Finance costs related to lease accounting;

24. Income tax expense

The components of income tax expenses are presented as follows:

(68,137)

(22,293)

(972)
(87,634)

2020 2019
Current income tax
Сuпеnt income tax expenses
Deferred income tax
Associated with the oссuпеnсе and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense

rate, and the actual amount of income tax expense is presented as follows:

Profit before income tax
Income tax at the actual rate (18%)
Impact of income not included in expenses for tax calculation
purposes
Income tax expense

136,616 69,925

(88,087) (33,114)
48,529 36,811

As at 31 December 2020, the recognized dеfепеd tax assets and liabilities relate to the following items:

31 Recognized in
December profit and

2019 loss

Recognized in
other

31
December

2020

2019
(178,380)

(70,470)-

(21,642)

(20,566)

(47,507)

(24,456)
(397,231)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, france costs were presented as follows:

2020 2019

(68,859)

(17,803)

(1,448)
(91,878)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the income tax rate for Ukrainian entities was 18%.

The difference between the total expected amount of income tax expense, calculated using the current pre-tax income tax

2020
417,706

75,187

(26,658)

48,529

2019
124,683
22,443

14,368

36,811
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comprehensive
income

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right of lease

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Сuпеnt receivables
Other сuпеnt provisions
Production stock
Other liabilities

Net deferred tax assets/(liabikties)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right of lease

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Сuпеnt receivables
Other current provisions
Production stock
Other liabilities

Net deferred tax assеts/(liаЬйitiеs)

25. Related parties

(34,250) 5,233 (29,017)
(33,207) 4,325 (28,882)

(319) 11 (308)
(724) 896 172

55,971 82,854 1,911 140,737
35,634 (28,093) 1,911 9,452
15,311 51,923 - 67,234
3,252 61,978 - 65,230

972 (292) - 680
803 1,618 - 2,421

21,721 88,087 1,911 111,720

. . Recognized in31 Recognized in 31
oUterDecember profit and . December

2018 loss comprehensive 2019
income

(57,571) 23,321 - (34,250)
(56,834) 23 627 - (33 207)

(737) 418 - (319)
- (724) - (724)

42,850 9,793 3,328 140,737
26,933 5,373 3,328 9,452
13,669 1,641 - 67,234

1,811 1,441 - 65,230
437 535 - 680

- 803 - 2,421

(14,721) 33,114 3,328 21,721

Balances on settlements with related parties as at 31 December 2020 were presented as follows:

Assets
Trade receivables
Receivables on advances paid
Other cunent receivables
Other cunent assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Business entities
controlled by
shareholders

Liabilities
Current trade payables -

Current payables on advances received -

Current provisions for dividend payments (184,279)

Other entities Total

The balances on settlements with related parties as at 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

32,544

8,539

12,759

32,544

8,539

12,759

(184,279)
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Business entities
controlled by Other entities Total
shareholders

Assets
Trade receivables - 17 17
Receivables on advances paid - 1,529 1,529
Other current receivables - 143 143
Other сuпеnt assets - 1,177 1,177
Cash and cash equivalents - 254,437 254,437

Liabilities
Current trade payables .. (800) (800)
Current payables on advances received (1) (4,928) (4,929)
Current provisions for dividend payments (43,907) - (43,907)

Related party transactions for the year ended 3 1 December 2020 were presenLed as follows:

Business entities
controlled by Other entities Total
shareholders

Sales of finished goods - 71,203 71,203
Costs
Acquisition of gas and electricity - (12,573) (12,573)
Other acquisitions - (19,971) (19,971)

Related party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:

Business entities
controlled by Other entities Total
shareholders

Sales of finished goods - 92,387 92,387
Costs
Acquisition of gas and electricity - (11,277) (11,277)
Other acquisitions (1,102) (17,414) (18,516)

(a) Terms and conditions of related party transactions

Purchase and sale transactions with related parties are carried out at normal prices, mostly the same as with unrelated
suppliers and customers. Outstanding balances at the end of the year are unsecured and interest free. Settlements are made
in cash, except for advances received and prepayments. No guarantees were given or received for receivables or payables
from related parties. Each year, the Company estimates the impairment of receivables from related parties by reviewing
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the terms of repayment of receivables from related parties do not exceed
12 months.

(Ь) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel is considered to be the Company’s Board of Directors, consisting of 7 persons (2019: 8
persons). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the expenses for the key management personnel consideration consisted
mainly of salaries and related accruals and amounted to UA}1 6,082 thousand (for 2019: UAH 5,724 thousand).

26. Fair value of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments was
approximately equal to their fair value. The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of up to
one year, less any estimated adjustments, is considered to be their carrying amount due to the short maturities of these
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instruments. However, when the effect of the time value of money is significant, the fair value of short-teun financial
instruments is measured by discounting future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate used by the
Company for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of financial liabilities is measured by discounting future contractual cash flows at the сuпеnt market interest
rate used by the Company for similar financial instruments.

27. Financial instruments and risk management

In the course of its activities, the Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk). The Company does not hedge such risks.

This note provides information on the level of each of these risks, the objectives, policies and processes of risk assessment
and management. More detailed quantitative information is disclosed in the relevant notes to these financial statements.

Management bears general responsibility for establishing and overseeing the risk management structure.

The risk management policies are approved to idеnti~’ and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to establish
appropriate risk limits and controls, monitor risks and comply with the limits. Risk management policies and systems are
regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s acLivilies. Using training tools and
management standards and procedures, the Company seeks to create a disciplining and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and responsibilities.

(a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, i.e. the risk that a party to a contract will fail to fulfill its obligations and, as a
result, the Company will incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises &om cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks,
and credit risks from transactions with counterparties, including outstanding trade and other receivables.

When signing agreements with new counterparties, the Company estimates the creditworthiness of the potential
counterparty and determines credit limits that are individual for each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are regularly
reviewed at least annually.

The maximum amount of the Company’s credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets presented in
the Company’s financial statements less impainnent losses.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Company’s credit risk on trade and other receivables, including
receivables from related parties, by categories of customers was as follows:

Customers non-residents of Ukraine 1,084,367 600,804
Customers residents of Ukraine 292,775 63,510
Total 1,377,142 664,314

Estimate of expected credit losses

The Company applies the simplified approach provided in IFRЅ 9 to the estimation of expected credit losses, which
applies an estimated provision for expected credit losses for the entire term for all trade and other receivables and
contractual assets.

To estimate expected credit losses, trade and other receivables were grouped on the basis of general credit risk
characteristics and the number of overdue days. Other receivables are work in progress, for which no invoices have yet
been issued, and have essentially the same risk characteristics as trade receivables under the same contracts. See
information on the levels of expected credit losses on trade receivables in Note 8. To determine the probability of default,
the Company defines default as a situation where the sensitivity to risk meets one or more of the following criteria:

. the borrower’s delay in payments under the agreement exceeds 90 days;

. international rating agencies include the borrower in the class of default ratings;

. the borrower meets the criteria of probable insolvency specified below:
- insolvency of the client;
- breach by the client of one or more financial restrictive conditions (covenant);
- occurrence of the probability of the clients bankruptcy.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is that the Company may have difficulty in meeting its fmancial obligations, which are settled through the
transfer of cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to liquidity management involves ensuring, as far as
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possible, that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the obligations as they fall due, both in normal circumstances and in
emergencies, while avoiding unacceptable losses and the risk of reputational damage to the Company.

The maturilies of non-derivative interest-bearing financial liabilities under the agreements, including interest payments
(undiscounted cash flows) as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, are as follows:

Carrying Cash flows
amount under contracts Up to 1 year On request

As at 31 December 2020
Other non-сuпеnt liabilities 8,705 8,705 0 8,705
Сппеnt payables on long-term liabilities 4,745 4,745 4,745 0
Current trade payables 223,035 223,035 188,226 34,808
As at 31 December 2019
Снпеnt trade payables 96,778 96,778 81,674 15,104

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis may arise much earlier or will differ significantly
in amount.

Market risk

Market risk consists in the fact that changes in mai-ket rates, such as ~хсlіанgе tales, іііЊіеьt taLes and sосuііЁіыѕ aateѕ,
will affect the Company’s income or value of its financial instruments. The purpose of market risk manageinenl is 10

manage and control the level of market risk within acceptable parameters in addition to profitability optimization. All
similar transactions are сaпiеd out in accordance with the instructions of management.

Currency risk

The Company faces currency risk in connection with sales, purchases, balances in banks, denominated in foreign
currencies. The currencies in which these transactions are mostly denominated are UЅD and Euro.

The currency risk level is presented as follows:

UЅD E]ЈR
As at 31 December 2020
Trade receivables 389,171 154,002
Cash and cash equivalents 32,874 ______________

422,045 154,002
As at 31 December 2019
Trade receivables 600,803 -

Cash and cash equivalents 13,621 3,202

614,424 3,202

A weakening of the lnyvnia exchange rate by 10% against the currencies listed in the following table would lead to an
increase (decrease) in equity and net income by the following amounts. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
including interest rates, will remain unchanged.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
UЅD 42,205 61,442
EUR 15,400 320

57,605 61,762

Risk ofconcentration

In 2020, revenues from the Company’s two main customers represented approximately 35% or UAH 1,102,742 thousand
of the Company’s net income (2019:80% or UAH 2 832 533 thousand).

The Company’s management takes measures to reduce the concentration of sales revenue.

As at 31 December 2020, UAH 546,271 thousand or 37% of the total amount of receivables and other receivables are
represented by the debts of two main customers (31 December2019: UAH 515,785 thousand or 78%).

As at 31 December 2020, UAH 99,282 thousand or 39% of the total amount of payables is represented by debts to two
main suppliers (December 31,2019: UAH 35,929 thousand or 37%).
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28. Liabilities and contingent liabilities

(a) Investment liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has investment liabilities in the amount ofUAH 184,589 thousand (31 December
2019: UAH 43,230 thousand).

(b) Legal proceedings

From time to time, and in the ordinary course of business, certain claims are made against the Company. H the risk of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is perceived to be probable, a liability is recognized in the provision
for legal proceedings and potential penalties (Note 13).

Ifmanagement estimates that the risk of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is unlikely to be probable,
or the cost cannot be estimated reliably, the provision is not recognized and the related amount is disclosed in the financial
statements. Management believes that it has formed provisions for all material losses in these fmancial statements.

Management believes that the maximum responsibility for liabilities that may arise from such legal proceedings and
disputes will not have a material adverse effect on the fmancial position or performance of the Company’s future
transactions, other than those included in the provisions for legal proceedings. The Company also identifies potential
liabilities that management estimates not to be mandatory. Such potential liabilities may become actual and the Company
will be required to recognize additional amounts of losses.

(e) Contingent tax liabilities

The Company сaпiеs out most of its transactions in Ukraine, and therefore must comply with the requirements of the tax
legislation of Ukraine. The Ukrainian tax system is characterized by the presence of numerous taxes and frequently
changing legislation, which can be applied retrospectively, have different interpretations, and in some cases is
contradictory. Conflicts in the interpretation of tax legislation often arise between local, regional and national tax
administrations and between the Ministry of Finance and other state bodies. Tax returns are subject to verification by
various authorities, which according to the legislation are authorized to apply severe penalties, as well as to collect fines.
A tax year remains open for tax audits for the next three calendar years, but in certain circumstances this tax year may be
extended.

The company carries out export transactions that could potentially fall within the scope of the new rules of Ukrainian
transfer pricing (TP) legislation.

Management believes that the Company complies with the TP requirements. As there is currently no established practice
of implementing new transfer pricing rules and the wording of some rules may be interpreted differently, the impact of
potential risks of appealing by the tax authorities to the Company’s position on transfer pricing cannot be reliably
estimated.

These facts create much more serious tax risks than those typical of countries with more developed tax systems.
Management believes that, based on their interpretation of the tax laws, official explanations and court decisions, tax
liabilities have been properly reflected in the accounting. However, the relevant authorities may have a different
interpretation of the above provisions.

No amounts related to contingent tax liabilities have been recognized in these financial statements because management
estimates cash outflows or reductions in tax receivables to be unlikely.

During 2020, criminal proceedings against the Company’s dismissed officials continued. Despite the fact that the matter
of tax assessment is not the subject of legal proceedings in the case, the Company does not exclude possible risks of
taking into account the results of criminal proceedings by the tax authorities in conducting tax audits. If these risks are
realized, it may lead to a possible surcharge by the tax authorities of income tax and appropriate penalties, as well as to
further legal proceedings with the tax authorities. The effect on the financial statements cannot be determined.

29. Segment disclosures

The Company distinguishes two segments by geographical area: VMMP branch and IMPP branch The accounting policies
of the reporting segments are the same as the accounting policies of the Company described in Note 3 to these fmancial
statements. Information on the results of each of the reporting segments is provided below. Performance is assessed on
the basis of sales for the period, as well as the cost of goods sold, provided monthly for inspection by management.

These fmancial indicators are the basis for assessing the effectiveness of activities, as management believes that such
information is most relevant for the purpose of comparing the results of individual segments with the results of other
entities operating in the same industries.

A brief overview of the activities performed by the Company’s reporting segments is provided below.
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The year eiided 31 December 2019
Sales revenue (goods, works, services)
Cost of sales (goods, works, services)
Gго~ profit of the sogniont
other divcјosureѕ
Depreciation of non-сuпеnt assets
Other operating income
Other operating costs
Finance costs

As at 31 December 2020
Assets
Liabilities
As at 31 December 2019
Assets
Liabilities

The reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was presented as follows:

Gross profit
Other operating income
Other operating costs
Administrative expenses
Sales costs
Other income
Other finance income
Finance costs
Other costs
Financial result before tax:

30. Events after the reporting period

The following significant events took place after the reporting datc:

2020 2019
1,052,806 1,060,347

237,772 65,529
(379,521) (397,231)
(226,785) (190,352)
(187,380) (265,547)

11,032 11,258
1,684 1,505

(91,878) (87,634)
(24) (73,192)

417,706 124,683

1) The starting price and conditions of privatization of JЅC UMCC have been submitted to the government for approval

The starting price at the auction for the sale of UMCC, which was determined and offered by the entity’s privatization
advisor, is UAH 3.7 billion. The privatization auction is scheduled for July 2021 by the State Property Fund of Ukraine.

уммР
branch

December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were presented as follows:Performance indicators for the periods ended 31

The year ended 31 December 2020
Sales revenue (goods, works, services)
Cost of sales (goods, works, services)
Gross profit of the segment
Other disclosures
Depreciation of non-current assets
Other operating income
Other operating costs
Finance costs

iMPP branch Unallocated
items Total

2,358,466 769,159 - 3,127,625
(1,566,509) (508,310) - (2,074,819)

791,957 260,849 - 1,052,806

(133,876) (68,672) (2,016) (204,564)
149,728 52,131 35,913 237,772

(90,098) (40,046) (249,377) (379,521)
(70,603) (19,827) (1,448) (91,878)

VMMP Unallocated
IMPP branch Totalbranch items

2,863,831 671,566 - 3,535,397
(1,937,183) (537,867) - (2,475,050)

026,648 133,699 1,060,347

(182,356) (87,263) (613) (270,232)
29,150 4,896 31,483 65,529

(103,574) (102,360) (191,297) (397,231)
(69,574) (17,088) (972) (87,634)

VMMP Unallocated
branch IMPP branch items Total

2,188,645 922,398 34,646 3,145,689
987,881 326,433 207,431 1,521,745

2,292,301 851,948 255,241 3,399,490
743,478 217,147 70,747 1,031,372
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